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Aviom India Housing Finance Private Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report
for the Financial year from April 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024

To the Members of,
Aviom India Housing Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Aviom India Housing Finance Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (hereinafter referred to as
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

opinion on the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

[ How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit loss)
(as described in Note 3 (e) (v) of the Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide
for impairment of its loan receivables (financial
instruments) using the expected credit loss
(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation
of probability- weighted loss on financial
instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could
impact the credit quality of the Company's
loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

e Defining Staging of loans (e,
classification in 'significant increase in
credit risk' (“SICR’) and 'default
categories);

o Estimation of losses for loan products
with no/ minimal historical defaults; and

e Estimating recoveries to determine loss
given default on a collective basis for
loans that have defaulted.

e Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default.

e Management overlay for macro-
economic factors and estimation of their
impact on the creditquality.

NCR

Our audit procedures included reading and considering Company's
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets and assessing
compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors.

We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls
across the processes relevant to ECL, including the judgements and
estimates; and underlying computation by testing the input data.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around data extraction and
validation.

We tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample basis to verify that
they were allocated to the appropriate stage.

Tested samples to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of the
input data used for determining the PD and LGD rates and agreed
the data with underlying books of accounts and records.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on theirpast-due
status to check compliance with requirementof Ind AS 109. Tested
samples of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any loss
indicators were present requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or
3. Assessed the additional considerations applied by the
management for staging of loans as SICR or default categories in
view of Company's policy on one-time restructuring.

For samples of exposure, we tested the appropriateness of
determining EAD, PD and LGD.

Assessed the floor/ minimum rates of provisioning applied by the
Company for loan products withinadequate historical defaults by
testing the input data.

Tested assumptions used by the management in determining the
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overlay for macro-economic factors in accordance with the
governance framework approved by the Board of Directors pursuant
to RBIguidelines.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company in spreadsheets.

We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in
compliance with the Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109 in relation to ECL
especially in relation to judgements used in estimation of ECL
provision.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

5. The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report but does not include the Ind AS Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

_ continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

/. basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
\ realistic alternative but to do so.

( Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Aviom India Housing Independenjt Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
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Auditor’s responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standard of Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial
Statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with Standard of Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial

Statements. A 8.Co o\
/ C),'"f -.\\((\_:\

/ @_3 \\,0\"
( *(New Delhi *)

O

\ NCR @ )
\\ . ey
Cetis/

Aviom India Housing independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements



SCV & Co. LLP Continuation Sheet No. 5of 15

__ Chartered Accountants

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of the most
significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and requlatory requirements

10.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that:

(@)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the Company so far, as appears
from our examination of such books;

() The Balance Shegt, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d)  Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

(6)  On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a Director in terms of under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

] With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-B".

(9)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of clause (j) of
sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and explanations given to us:
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note No. 43(i) to the IND AS Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as as disclosed in
the Note No. 43(i) to the IND AS Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under subclause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly reporting under rule
11(f) is not applicable to the company.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting softwares for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 is applicable from Aprit 1, 2023 reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors )Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024
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11.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the provisions of
section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company, as it is a private
limited company.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Antuj Dhingra)
Partner
Membership No.: 512535
UDIN: 24512535BKCXEA8277

Place: New Delhi o ANTAS
Dated: May 21, 2024 R Ac¥
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Annexure-A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in Paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Aviom India Housing Finance
Private Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) (a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment has been conducted by the management during the year. All the Property, Plant and Equipment have
not been physically verified by the management during the year, however, there is a regular phased programme of
physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
fixed assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), therefore requirements to report under paragraph
3(i)(c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not revalued
its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and/or intangible assets during the year.
Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Register
Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value
of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible Assets does not arise.

(e) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, no proceedings have been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets (i.e. loans
given). In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company.
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To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that :

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, and investments made in
Mutual Funds during the year under audit, in our opinion, are prima-facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. There are no other investments made or guarantees provided or security given during the year under
audit.

(c) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Financial Company, is registered under
provisions of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with the
provisions of the said Act/ Rules, particularly, the income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms
and generally accepted business practices by the lending institutions, repayments scheduled are stipulated basis
the nature of the loan products. The repayment of the principal and the payment of interest by the borrower's are as
per the stipulated repayment schedule except in case of default cases.

Note 3(e) to the Ind AS Financial Statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of
financial assets which include loans assets. In accordance with that policy, loan assets with balances as at March
31, 2024, aggregating ¥ 1536.00 Lakhs were categorized as credit impaired (“Stage 3") and ¥ 12,171.76 Lakhs were
categorized as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition (*Stage 2"). Disclosures
in respect of such loans have been provided in Note 7(h) to the Ind AS Financial Statements. Additionally, out of
loans and advances in the nature of loans with balances as at the year-end aggregating ¥ 1,43,986.27 Lakhs, where
credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition (categorized as “Stage 1"), overdue in the repayment
interest and principal aggregating € 363.72 Lakhs were also identified. In all other cases, the repayment of principal
and interest is regular. Having regard to the nature of the Company's business and the volume of information
involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemized list of loan assets where delinquencies in the repayment of
principal and interest have been identified.

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, as
at the year-end is T 313.71 Lakhs. In our opinion, reasonable steps are being taken by the Company for recovery of
the principal and interest as stated in the applicable Regulations and Loan agreements.

(e) The Company’s principal business is to give loans, and hence requirements to report under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we did not come across loans or advance in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
Hence, requirements to report under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not given any
loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185. The Company has not made any
investment as referred in Section 186(1) of the Act and other requirements relating to Section 186 do not apply to
the company, being a Housing Finance Company.
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To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirements
to report under Paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the maintenance of cost records
has not been specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(vi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST'), Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities. The Company does not have liability in respect of sales-tax, service tax,
duty of excise, and value added tax, since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed info GST.
Further no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except for the details mentioned in the table as follows: (Status of below
mentioned overdues as on date).

Name of the Statue Nature of Amount Period to which Date of
dues (inRs.) amount relates subsequent

payment

Employee’s Provident Fund | Provident 4,47 931 April 2019to July | Not yet paid

and Miscellaneous | Fund Dues 2019

Provisions Act, 1952

Professional Tax Act 1987 Professional 71,800 April 2023 to | April 26, 2024

Tax dues September 2023

(b) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, there were no dues referred in
sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited on account of disputes.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, there were no transactions in the
books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the requirements to report under paragraph 3(viii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that,

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year.
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(i)

(xii)

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Term loans availed by the Company during the year have been applied for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint-venture as defined under the Companies Act,
2013 and therefore, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(ix)(e) & (f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and accordingly, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(b) The Company, during the year under audit, has made private placement compulsory convertible preference
shares. For such allotment, the requirements of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.
Also, the funds raised therefrom have been applied for the purpose for which those were raised. The Company,
during the year under audit, has not made any private placement of convertible debentures. Further there were no
preferential allotment of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year,
therefore compliance with the provisions of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(a) Neither any fraud by the Company, nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course
of the audit; nor we have been informed of any such case by the Company.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report).

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that,, the transactions with related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards

Aviom India Housing
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(xiv)  (a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued for the year under audit.

(xv) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, reporting on the
compliance of the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that,

(a) As the Company is a Non-Banking Financial institution and registered under National Housing Bank (NHB) Act,
1987, it has been exempted from the requirement of registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act; 1934.

(b) The Company is a registered Housing Finance Company and holds a valid certificate of registration from National
Housing Bank.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable;

(d) The Company does not have any CICs, which are a part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the Management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, requirements
to report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvij  The Company has notincurred cash losses in the current financial year and nor in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xix)  To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, asset liability
maturity (ALM) pattern and other information accompanying the Ind AS Financial Statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when they fall due.
155\
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(xx) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, there is no unspent amount under
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, ciauses 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The provisions of clauses 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

E_::T-'.'{‘-\
N\
Co (\“wm'\}m?
(Anuj Dhingra)
Partner
Place: New Delhi =l Membership No.: 512535
Dated: May 21, 2024 UDIN: 24512535BKCXEA8277
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Annexure-B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in Paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Aviom India Housing
Finance Private Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Aviom India Housing Finance Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Aviom India Housing Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that;

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financiai
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and

c. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

{(Anuj Dhingra)

2\ &/ Partner
N X
) M/ Membership No.: 512535

Place: New Delhi N{od Az
Dated: May 21, 2024 o UDIN: 24512535BKCXEA8277
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B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110 017
SCV& CO' LLP Tel.: 26499111, 222/444/555
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS E: delhi@scvindia.com e W: www.scvindia.com

Additional Auditor’s Report
In terms of paragraph 70 and 71 of the Master Direction - Non Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
Year ended March 31, 2024

To the Board of Directors of,
Aviom India Housing Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

1. In addition to the report made under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) on financial statement of AVIOM
India Housing Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and as required by Master
Direction-Non Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (the
'Directions'), we make a separate report to Board Of Directors of the company on the matters specified in paragraph 70
and 71 of the subject Directions to the extent applicable.

Management’s responsibility

2. The company's management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting
Standards specified in section 133 of the act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

3. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting principles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4, The Company’s management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements of subject
Directions. This responsibility includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
compliance with the subject Directions.

Auditor’s responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of subject Directions, it is our responsibility to provide reasonable assurance on whether
the company has complied with the matters specified in paragraph 70 and 71 of the subject Directions to the extent
applicable to the Company.

Noida Office: Unit No. 505, 5" Floor, Tower B, World Trade Tower, C 1, Sector-16, Noida -201301, UP: Tel: +91-120-4814400

Other Offices: Ludhiana . Mumbai . Bengaluru
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We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for special purposes

(Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'ICAI’). The Guidance Note requires that
we comply with the independence and other ethical requirements of the code of ethics issued by ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC") I, Quality Control

for firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

Based on our examination of the financial statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2024, books of account

and records of the company as produced for our examination and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we report that:

Vi,

Vil

With reference to paragraph 70.1.1. of the subject Directions, the company is engaged in housing finance
business, and it has obtained a certificate of registration No. 08.0140.16 from the National Housing bank (the
'NHB') vide certificate dated 16 August 2016, in pursuance of section 29A, of the NHB Act, 1987 (the 'NHB Act).
Also the company is meeting Principal Business Criteria (as at March 31, 2024) as laid down under Paragraph
4.1.17 of the subject Directions.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.2. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company is meeting the Net Owned Fund requirement as prescribed
under section 29A of the NHB Act read with paragraph 5.1 of the subject Directions.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.3. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with provisions of section 29C of NHB Act.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.4. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the total borrowings of the company are within the limits prescribed
under paragraph 27.2 of the subject Directions.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.5. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the prudential norms on income
recognition, accounting standards, asset classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure
in balance sheet, investment in real estate, exposure to capital market and engagement of brokers, and
concentration of credit/investments as specified in the subject Directions.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.6. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in half-yearly Schedule If return
has been correctly determined and the said ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted asset
ratio (CRAR) prescribed by the NHB.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.7. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the company has furnished to the NHB within the stipulated period of
the half yearly statutory return [i.e., Schedule II] as specified in the subject Direction H return is not
applicable to the Company. <

Q
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viil.

Xi.

Xil.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.8. of the subject Directions, the quarterly statutory return on Statutory Liquid
Assets, is not applicable to the Company.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.9. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the company has complied with the requirements contained in the
subject Directions in case of opening of new branches/ offices and in case of closure of existing branches/offices,

With reference to paragraph 70.1.10. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans against security of shares
and gold jewelry, hence provisions contained in paragraph 3.1.3 and paragraph 3.1.4 of the subject Direction are
not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company has complied with the paragraph 18 of the Directions.

With reference to paragraph 70.1.11. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the Board of Directors of the company has passed a resolution
dated May 29, 2023 for non-acceptance of public deposit;

With reference to paragraph 70.1.12. of the subject Directions, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted public deposits during the year
ended March 31, 2024, hence paragraph 27.2 of the subject Directions as well as reporting under paragraph 70.2
of the subject Directions is not applicable to the Company.

Restriction of use

9. This report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors solely in connection with the aforesaid Direction and
for submission to National Housing bank/ Reserve Bank of India, if required and may not be suitable for any other
purpose. Accordingly, our report should not be quoted or referred to in any other document or made available to any
other person or persons without our prior written consent. Also, we neither accept nor assume any duty or liability for any
other purpose or to any other party to whom our Report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior
consent in writing.

Place: New Delhi

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Partner
Membership No.: 512535

Dated: May 21, 2024 UDIN: 24512535BKCXEC9228
AVIOM INDIA HOSING FINANCE Additional Auditor’s Report (F.Y.2023-24) in terms of paragraph 70 and
PRIVATE LIMITED 71 of the Master Direction-Non Banking Financial Company - Housing

Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021



AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As ac v
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 5,320.59 1432856
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6 3,700.67 5,489.62
Loans 7 156,970.23 101,003.77
Investments 8 9,703.539 89401
Other financial assets 9 797273 304645
Total financial assets 183,667.81 124,047.80
Non Financial Assets
Current rax assets (net) 35 - -
Property, plant and equipment i 1,573.74 246.59
Intanggble assets 11 209.14 187.22
12 73413 453.56

Other non-fmancial assers 13 102271 1 4+5.81
Total non-financial assets 3,539.72 3,033.17
Total assets 187,207.53 127,080.97
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade pavables 14

F'otal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnses

Total ourstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 33753 400,82
Dervanve financial instruments 15 200,03
Debt securiiies 16 3RAITT 3317421
Borrowings (other than debt secunties) 17 92,736.82 57,842.26
Lease habilines 18 825.77 563.65
Other financial habihtes 19 11,907.17 5,32431
Total financial liabilities 144,445.03 97,514.25
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax habilities (net) 35 36.15 11.24
Deferred tax habilites (net) 35 1.506.73 462.02
Provisions 20 218.75 75.90
Other non-financial iabikties 21 745.20 270.39
Total non-financial liabilities 2,506.83 819.55
EQUITY
Fquity share capital 22 4.860.38 4,621.43
Other equity 23 35,395.29 24,125.74
Total equity 40,235.67 28,747.17
Total Liabilities and Equity 187,207.53 127,080.97
Summary of material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

F'or SCV & Co. LLP f-or and on behalf of the Board of Directors fE -
Chartered Accountants — ~ AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limifed
I'iem registeation number: O00235N/N300089 &l ¢ /' \,
5 & ~ \]&
\
N

[ * New Delhi | + |

NCR

\2 |
\" irector and CEO Dircetor
Membership No.: 512535 390771 DIN Na: 9082591
Place: Bellevue, WA, LUSA
12024 Date : May 21,2024 |

‘\Pi vt
= : Divyani Cijnd

Company Secretarn

Chicf Vigilance and Collection Officer Membership No: ACS- 52153
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delh Phice: New Delh:
Date : May 21,2024 Date : Mav 21,2024 Date : May 21,2024




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

. " For the year ended For the year ended
Eeriainy Niotes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations

Interest ncome 24 30,629.50 20,882.61

Fees and commmssion mcome 25 5,059 86 259388

Net gun on tar value changes 26 954.72 7861

Net gan on derecognition of financial instruments under amortsed cost category 7 4,954.97 632.20
Total revenue from operations 41,599.05 24,187.30
Other meome 28 B85.87 329
Total income 41,684.92 24,190.59
EXPENSES

Fmance costs 29 15,928.95 11,61588

Fees and conumission expenses 30 1,479.44 94245

Employee benefits expenses 3 12,373.11 6,01676

Impairment on financial mstruments 32 546.59 36.49

Depreciation, amortization and mmpainment 33 1,005.14 66405

Other expenses 34 3,998.93 271601
Total expenses 35,332.16 21,991.64
Profit before exceptional items and tax 6,352.76 2,198.95
Exceptional items
Profit before 1ax 6,352.76 2,198.95
Tax expense: 35

Current tax 675.06 303.21

Deferred tax 1,089.70 24959

Tax expense pertainng 10 previous year 3976
Total tax expense 1,764.76 592.56
Profit for the year 4,588.00 1,606.39
Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit habilities /assets (6.16) 057

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss 1.55 {0.14)
Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Loss on denvatve Lability (378.73)

Income tax relatng to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 4343 -
Total other comprehensive income for the period (339.91) 043
Total comprehensive income 4,248.09 1,606 82
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) 36
Basic (INR) 26.70 11.40
Diluted (INR) 1149 475
Summary of material accounting policies 14

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fimm regstmation number: 000235N /N500089

Membership No.. 512535

Place: New Dellu
Date - May 21,2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AVIOM India Housing Finance Privatg Limited

J\\b

Kaajf Aijaz llmi
Director and CEO

DIN No.: 01390771 IN No.: 92082591

Place: New Dellu Place: Bellevue, WA, USA

Date - May 21,2024 Date : May 21,2024 '

VAot

v

= Divyani Ch;

Amit 5 Company Secretary
Chief Vigilance and Collection Officer Membership No: ACS- 52153
Place: New Dellu Place: Now Dethi

Date : 21 May 2024 Date : 21 May 2024




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 31 March 2024

All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

3 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulacs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 6,352.76 2,198.95

Adjustments for:
Depreaaton and amortsation LO05.14 664.05
Imparrment on financial mstruments 546.59 36.49
Unamortised processmg fee (Income Side) 562.67 183.83
Interest on lease habihnes 81.32 94.37
Unamornsed processing fee on borrowmngs 875.65 85175
Interest on staff loan (57.22) (43.91)
Interest on cash collateral (47.09) (58.40)
Interest income on fixed deposits (349.65) (240.33)
luterest meome on security deposns (6.58)
Profit on terminaton of leases (1.83)
Net gain on fair value changes (954, (78.61)
Net gam on derecogmition of financal mstruments under amortised cost category (4.954.97) (632.20)

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,966.72 2,967.58

Adjustment for change in working capitak:
(Increase) m loan and advances

(Increase)/ Decrease m other fmancial assets
{Tucrease)/ Decrease m other non-financeal assets
(Decrease)/ Increase m other financial liabilities
Increase /(Decrease) in provisions

(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-financial kabilities
(Increase)/ Decrease m trade pavables

Cash flow used in operations

Income tax pad (net)

Net cash used in operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Investment m fixed deposits
Marurity of fixed deposits
Purchase of mvestments
Sale of mvestments
Interest received on fixed deposits
Purchase of property, plant and equipments
Purchase of mmagble assets
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from sssuance of equity shares, meluding secunty premmum
Proceeds from issuance of compulsory convertible preference shares, including security premmum

Proceeds from borrowmgs. mcludmg debt secuninies
Repayment of borrowings, mcluding debr secuntes
Payment of lease habihty

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents includes:
Cash m hand
In current accounts

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Far SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounrants
Firm regstration number: 000235 /N 500089

Membership No.: 512535

Place: New Delhs
Date : May 21,2024

(56,928.51)

(31,817.52)

83.66 247.24
380.00 (42.15)
638286 (1.693.10)
136.69 (25.28)
474.81 30.87
(72.29) 318.61
(46,576.06) (30,013.75)
(650.14) (585.76)
(47,226.20) (30,599.50)
(32,900.96) (8,792.45)
34,689.92 71.555.72
(98.421.78) (10,071.47)
89,762.31 10,136.82
349.65 142.51
(1,298.11) (919.51)
(187.07) (14.31)
(8,006.04) (1,962.69)
- 2,194.96
7,260.42 9.597.30
70,768.03 4831371
(31,657.72) (26,157.37)
(146.46) (236.04)
46,224.27 33,712.56
(9,007.97) 1,150.37
14,328.50 13,178.19
5,320.59 14,328.56
61274 763.60
470785 13,562.96
5,320.59 14,328.56
Far and on behalf of the of Directors of

AVIOM India Housing Fin)nce Private Limited Q 5

Q\ /

DIN No.: 0139077
Place: New Delha

Dare : May 21,2024

Chief Vigilance and Collection Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date : 21 May 2024

Director

DIN No.: 9082591
Place: Bellevue, WA, USA
Date : May 21,2024 «

'
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W AN e
Divkani C
Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS- 52153
Place: New Delhs
Date : 21 May 2024




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity tor the period ended 31 March 2024

Allamaunts in INR lakhs, except per share dat or as otherwise stated

Al

Liquity share capital

Compulsory Converuble

Equity shares A Amount
Balance as ar 1 April 2022 131810 2,554.69 3,872.79
Vdd: Shares ssued during the vear 16433 BLERE 748.64
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,482.63 3,138.80 4,621.43
Balance as at 1 April 2023 1,482.63 3,138.80 4,621.43
Add: Shares ssued dunng rhe year 34761 RALHIA] 9R5.69
Lese: Converted Ineo Equity Shares Capatal - T46.73 746.73
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,030.24 2,830.15 4,860 39
Other equity

Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive income
Securites Share application  Special reserve under Rewmined Remeasurements Hedging Towl
preminm maoney peading Section 29C of the carnings of defined benefit plans reserve
allotment NIIB Act, 1987

Balance as at L April 2022 10,527.32 - 360.88 58718 0.62 11,476.00
e for the penod Lona 34 - L606.39
Meldhitrons dinng the vear 114632 - 1L,446.32
Shure waie oxpenses 03400 - (403.40)
Cther compreliensive moome (nerof tas 43 - 0.43
Frasy specnl geserve under section 200 0f NHB Acy, 1987 32128 (32128 =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 21,570.24 = 682.16 1,872.29 1.05 - 24,125.74
Balance as w1 Apnl 2023 21,570.24 - 682.16 L,872.29 LO5 24,125.74
Profu for the penad RELLACH 4,388.00
Addinme durnog the vear 706192 22.39 7,084.30
shiir sssie exprenses (261.96) {201.,96)
Prepmuam of allotment of conversion of COPS 19913 19913
Other conmpiehensive meome (ner of tix) ol 335 500 (339.92)
Feanstee o specal ceserve under secnon 200 of NHB Acr, 1987 - 917.60 (917 60y -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 28,569.33 22.39 1,599.76 5,542.69 (3.56) (335.30) 35,395.29
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iii)

a)

b

d)

Company Overview

Aviom India Housing Fmance Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private himited company incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013 The Company is
registered with the National Housing Bank as a Housing Finance Company wvide certification no. 08014016 dated 16 August 2016, The Company is engaged in the business of providing
housing and non-housing loans. The Company’s red bi ible deb are lisied on Bombay Stock Exchange in India (BSE). As such . the Company has acquired the status
of Listed Company pursuant 1o Section 2(52) of Companies Act. 2013 Under the scale based ions the company is zed as middle laver (HFCML)

Basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Balance Sheet. Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity are together referred as the financial statement of the Company. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the C (Indian Standards) Rules, 2015 notfied under Section 133 of
the Companies Act. 2013, (the *Act’). other relevant provisions of the Act. gmdelines issued h\ Mational Housing Bank (NHB') and Reserve Bank of India ('RBI" as applicable to an Housing
Fanance Compames and other inciples generally accepted in India. Any appl d: clanficati 1ons 1ssued by NHB / RBI or other regulators are implemented

Pr ion of Financial Si

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Division 11 of Schedule 1 1o the Act. The
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and p d as per the requi of Ind AS 7S of Cash Flows™ As required by Division [11 issued under Schedule TIT of the Act, the
Company has presented the assets and labilities 1n the balance sheet m the order of Ligudity

F jonal and pr i

Indian Rupee (INR) 15 the Company s ﬁmwonai currency and the currency of the primary economic environment 1 which the Company operates. Accordingly, the ‘has

that financial statements arc presented in INR and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimal places, except when otherwise stated.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at the meeung held on 21 May 2024

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have heen prepared on historical cost basts except for certain financial instruments that are measurcd at fnr valoes

Historical cost is a measure of value used for accounting in which the price of an asset on the balance sheet is based on its histonical cost. it is gencrally fair valuc of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services at the ume of ransaction or onginal cost when acquired by the Company.

Fair value 1s the price that 18 likely to be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderty transaction between market parti on the daie. regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In esumatng the fair value of an assct or a hability, the Company takes into account the characienistice
of the asset or hability that market participants would take info account when pricing the asset or liabulity at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes m
the financial statements 1s determined on such a basis. excent for leasing ransactions that are within the scooe of Ind AS 116 Leases.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into fur value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs 1o the fair value measurements are observable and the sigmficance of
the inputs to the fmr value measurement in its entirety, which are desenbed as follows:

» Level | quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabadities that the Company can access on measurement date,

=+ Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are obscrvable for the assct or liability, cither directly or indirectly. and

» Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilites

Sieni o ud pp— and :
The preparation of the Company's ﬁmn:ll] requires 1o make jud, i and that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the di as well as the discl of Tiabil Uncertainty about these assumptions and esumates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the nn'j-ing amount of assets or liabilitics affected in future periods

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. management has made the foll; d and esti . which have a nisk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrving amounts of assets and linbilities within the next financial year

Business model assessment

The Company determines the busiess model at the level thar best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. An assessment of busincss models for
managng financial assets 15 fundamental 1o the classification of a financial asset The Company considers all relevant information avarlable when making the business model assessment. The
Company takes into account all relevant evidence avaulable such as

= how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the Company’s key management personnel .

= the nisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held withm that business moded) and. 10 parucular, the way in wiuch those nsks are managed. and

- how managers of the business are compensated (c.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash Qows collected)

The Company's business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individual mstrument. therefore the business model asscssment is performed at a higher level of
aggregation rather than on an mstrument-by-strument basis. Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company, the management has measured 1ts financial assets at
amortized cost except investment in mutual funds as the asset is held within the business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash Nows. and the contractual terms of the financial
assel give nse 1 cash Nows that are solely payments of pnncipal and interest (the SPPI criterion’).

Fair value of financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to tansfer a liability i an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions (1.¢.. an exit pnee) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or d using another val h . When the fur
values of financial assets and financial habilises recorded in the balance sheet cannot be denved from the active markets, they are determined using a vanety of valuauon technigues that
include the use of valuation models The inputs o these models are taken from observable markets where possible. but where this is not feasible. estimation 15 required in establishing fur
values. Jud and include d of liauidity and model inpuis related 1o items such as credit nsk (both own and counterpariv). fundine value adiustments. correlauon

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodol ises interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best esumate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of
loans. given/taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at vanous stages and other charactenstics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penally inlerest
and charges). This esumation, by naturc, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and
ather fee income/ expensc that are mtegral part of the nstrument

Defined emplovee bencfit assets and liabilities
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obl d d using actuanal val An actuanal valuation

involves making vanous assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the dﬁmmulum\ of the discount rate. future salary mereases and moriality rates
Duc to the complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 1s highly sensitve to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each renarine date
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a)

Provisions and contingencies
The Company npammamgaﬂ.lm and legal eavironment that, by nature. has a heightencd clement of litiganen nsk inherent 10 its operations. As a result. 1t is involved i various litigation,
arbirration and regulatory and p hings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of cconomic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows 1o be probable, the Company records a provision against
the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered 10 be remote, or probablc. but a reliable cstimaic cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed

Given the subjectivity and of i the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes 1nto account a number of factors including legal advice. the stage of the matier
and historical evidence from similar incideats ngml'ummdgcmﬂus 15 required to conclude on these esumates.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and inalion options and i ing rate - Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease. together with any penods covered by an option 1o extend the lease if it is reasonably certain (o be exercised. of
any periods covered by an option 1o the lease. 1Ifit1s bly certam not 1o be excrased
The Company has several contracts that include extension and (ermination options. The Company would applies jud, n g whether it is bly certain whether or not 10
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to excrase cither the rencwal o termination. After the
commencement date. the Company reassesses the lease term if there 15 significant event or change in circumstances that is within the control and affects its ability to exercise or not (o exercise
the option (o rencw or to (eg. of signifi leaschold imp or i i isation 1o the leased assels).
The Company cannot readily determine the inferest rate implicit in the lease, therefore. 1t uses is incremental borrowings mate (IBR) to measure lease habihities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Company would have 1o pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar secunty, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the nght-of-usc asset in a similar
cconomic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay', which require estimation when no obscrvable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted 10
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
Impairment of financial asset
The measurement of impairment losses across all categones of financial assets requires judj in lar. the jon of the amount and nnung of future cash Nows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.
The Company's ECL ulmlmumm mnpulsofwmpia models with a number of underiving assumptions regarding the choice of vanable inputs and thar mterdependencies. Elements of the
ECL models that arc consid and esti include
- The development of Company's ECL model. which assigns Probability of defaults (PDs)
- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit nisk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a Life Time Expected Credit Loss
(LTECL) basis and the qualitative asscssment.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL 1s assessed on a collective basis.

- Development of ECL models. including the vanous. fmnulunn‘lﬁ: chaice of inputs
- D i of between and, ic inputs, and the effect on PDs { Probability of defaulis)y . EADs(Exposure at Defaults) and LGDs(Loss Given
Default)
- Selecuon of forward-locking i and their i 1izhii 1o denve the ic inpuis into the ECL models.
Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
The charge in respect of periodic 1on 15 derved afier an esumaic of an asset’s expected useful life and the expecied residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of Company’s assets arc determined by management al the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unvsed tax losses to the extent that it is probable chm future taxable profit will be avamlable against which the losses can be utilized. In assessing the
probability, the Company considers whether the entity has taxable temp relating to the same taxaton authonty and the same taxable entity, which will result in
wmxable amounts agmnst which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be unhmd before ihey expire. Signficant management assumplions src required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recosnized. based upon the likely tming and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Material accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment ("PPE")
Recognition and measurement
PPE are stated in the balance sheet al cost less lated d and lated losses. The cost of an stiem of PPE compnses 1s purchase price. including import dutics
and other non-refundable Laxes or levies and m&rwl\nmbu:blcmnufmmngurmmm“mhngmdam for ns intended use. If sigmificant pants of an iiem of PPE have different
uscful lives, then they are accounted for as scparate items (major components) of PPE. The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset i and oaly if. 1t is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the item wall flow to the Company 1 future penods and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred afier the PPE have been put into operations,
such as repair and maiienance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss duning the period in which they are incurred
Subsequent Measurement
Sub: is capitalised only if it is probable that the furure ic benefits d with the i will flow to the Company
Derecognition and measurement
An ttem of property, plant and equy and any sigmifi part inivally ised is d d upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 1ts use or disposal
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the diffe between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.
Depreciation
Deprecianon on PPE 15 provided on wniten down value method using the rates armved at based on the useful lives as specified in the Schedule 11 of the Compames Act. 2013 Depreciation on
the PPE added/disposed off/discarded during the year is provided from/upto the date when added/di d off/d ded. The esti d uscful lives and residual values of the PPE are reviewed
at the end of cach financial vear. The Company has used following uscful lives 1o provide dcum:llnuq on iis PPE

Useful life

Computer 3 years
Furniture and Fixiures 10 vears
Office equipments S vears
Vehicles & vears
Leasehold impy are ised over the I ! including the optional period, if any. availabic 1o the Company, where i is reasonably certain at the inception of lease that such

option would be exercised by the Company
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Other Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible asscts. representing software are initially i a1 cost and sub Iy carricd ot cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulaied impairment. The cost of assets
compnses of purchase price and directly attnbutable cost of bringing the assets to working condition for its intended usc.

Subsequent Measurement
is lised only if it 1s probable that the future bencfits i with the will flow 1o the Company.

Amortisation

The intangible assets are amortised using the writien down value method over a peniod of three vears (which 1s the management's esumate of its uscful hife) from the date when the asset is
available for use or hicense penod whichever is lower. Amortisation on the intangible asset disposed off duning the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of disposal. The
useful lives of intangible asscts arc reviewed at cach financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Al the end of cach reporting peried, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets o determine whether there is any indscation that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is csumated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss (i any) When it is not pessible to
esumaie the ble amount of an individual asset. the Company estimaies the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs

Revenue recognition

interest income

The Company carns revenue in the form of interest income on loans granted. Revenne is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenne can be relinbly measured. Interest income is recognized using the cffective interest rate ('EIR') method. The EIR method calculates the amortized cost of a financial mstrument and
allocates the interest income. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial asset through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate. a shorter
penod. to the net carrving amount of the financial instrument. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial i (for example, prepay options) and
includes any fees or incremental costs that are dircctly atnbutable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR. but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.c. a1 the amorused cost of the financial asset before
adjustng for any expected credit loss allowance). When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is. therefore. regarded as ‘Stage 3'. the Company calculates the mterest only i 1t is
considered recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts 1o recogmzang unterest income on gross basis

Fees and commission income not integral to EIR method under Ind AS 109 and income from services and ion of
The Company izes the fees and jon income like application fees, penal interest, cheque bouncing charges. other income. cic. oot micgral to EIR method under Ind AS 109 i
accordance with the terms of relevant customer and when it is d that the Company will collect the consideration for items

Dividend income
Dividend income is accounted for when the nght 1o receive the income is established. which 1s generally when the shareholders approve the dividend

Financial Instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives risc 10 a financial assct of an entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Initial recognition and measurcment

Financial Asscts
Financial assets. with the exception of loans and advances to customers. ar¢ imually recognised on the trade date. 1 ¢ the date that the Company becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions
of the [ The classification of financial at initial gnition depends on their purpose and ch and the 's inicnfion when acquiring theni. All

financial assets are recogmised imually at fair value plos, in the case of financial assets not recorded at favr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attnbutabic to the acquisition
Financial Liabilttics

Financial liabil are cl d and d mt cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classificd as held for trading or it is designated as such on
ininal recogmuon. All financial habiliues are recogmsed wmnally at fur value mr]. in l.be case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial habilities include trade and other pavables. loans and bank

Subscquent measurement

Financial Assets

On subsequent recognition, a financial asset 1s classified and measured at

- Amortised Cost;

- Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT), or
- Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Financial asscts arc not reclassificd sub: 1o thar initial except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financtal asset is measured at amorused cost if it meets both of the foll g cond and is not asa FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash flows; and
~ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial of an equity that is not held for trading, the Company may imrevocably clect 10 present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCT) (designated as FVOCT - nqml\ investment). This election 1s made on an mvestment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified and d a1 i wﬂul-‘VOClasdumboﬂnhmvmmmﬂnFWPLOnmmmmgmumlhe(‘mnpnmmmmewmbhdmgmh:
financial asset that meets the reqt 1o be at cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL. if downg so el of ly reduces an ¢ h that

would otherwise anse

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment. “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on imitial recogmition. “Interest” 1s defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (¢ g ligmdity risk and admimistrative cosis), as
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or ameunt of contraciual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or unung of cash flows.

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon raie. including vanable imerest rate features.

Financial assets: S measurement and gains 2od losses
Financial assets measured a1 FVTPL These asscts are subsequently measured at farr value. Net gains and losses. including any interest or|
dividend income. are recogmised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial assets measured a1 FVOC] These assets are subsequently measured a1 fair value Dividends are recognised as income in the Statement)
of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the mvestment.
Other net ma.ndlussnln.' sedm()(,'lmdarcm( reclassified 10 profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at Amortised Cost These asscts are sub d at ised cost using the effective interest rate method. Thej
amortised cost 15 reduced hv imparrment losses. Interest income, forcign exchange gains and losses and|
are d m the of Profit and Loss. Anv gain or loss on derecogmibon is

recopmsed o the S of Profitand Loss

Financial Liabilitics
Financial hatilities arc

at a mortised cost using the effecuve interest method
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Derecognition
Financial Assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset cxpire. or it transfers the financial asset and the ransfer qualifies for de

A financial asset is considered 1o be transferred if. and only if. cither:

- the Company has transferred its contractual nghts to recerve the cash flows from the financial assets. or

- the Company retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withouwt matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
Arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights 1o receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘onginal asset’), but assumes a contractual
obligauon to pay those cash flows to one or more entitics (the ‘eventual recipients’). Pass-through result in dereog of financial assets only when all the following three
conditions are met

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the cventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the nght 10
full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued inferest at market rates,

- The Company cannot scll or pledge the onginal asset other than as securty to the eventual reciprents.

- The Company must remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of eventual recipients withowt maienal delay

In addition. the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investment in cash or cash equivalents including interest camed. dunng the year between the collection date and
date of required remittance to the eventual recipients

A transfer only qualifics for derecognition if either:
- the Company has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of the asset. or
- the Company has neither ferred nor retamned sub Hy all the nisks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of the assct

The Company considers control 1o be transferred if and only 1f, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety 1o an unrelated third party and 15 able 1o excrcise that ability
I 1y and without dihi 1] ions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither ferred nor retained ially all the risks and rewards of the asset and has retained control of the asset, the asset continucs 1o be recognised only to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, which case. the Company also e an d hability. The d assct and the d liability are d on a basis that
reflects the nghts and obligations that the Company has retaned.

Assignment
In case of transfer of loans through direct ions, the ferred loans arc d iscd and ga are d for, only if the Company transfers substantially all
nisks and rewards specified in the underlying assigned loan contract. In accordance with Ind AS 109, on de-recognition of a financial asset under assigned transacuons, the difference between

the carrying amount and the d recerved are d in the of profit and loss

Financial Liabilitics

The Company derecogmses a financial hability when its | obligations are disch d or {led. or expire. Where an cxisting financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same
lender on subsiantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantally modified. such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the onginal hability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carmying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recogmised in profit or loss.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uscs derivative financial instruments to hedge its certain forcign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date a denvauve
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-mcasured at their fair value at the end of cach period. Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of at the end of cach penod. Any
gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of derivatives are directly ized in the Si of profit or loss.

Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrving amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
gencrally the case when the Company determines that the bormower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-
offs. Any subscquent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss. However. financial assets that are written off could sull be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the company s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of Balance Sheet whether a Financial asset or a group of Financial asscts is impaired. Ind AS - 109 requires expected credit losses 1o be measured through
a foss allowance.

The Company follows a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes i credit quality since imitial recogmition as summarised below:

Particulars [Criteria
Stage | (1-30 Davs) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit nsk since initial recognition or that have low credit nsk at the

|Stage 2 (31-90 Davs) includes loan asscts that have bad a significant increase in credit nisk since initial ition but that do not have objective evidence of

Stage 3 (More than 90 Davs) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment a1 the reporting daic
The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at |2-month ECL for Stage | loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan asscts. ECL is the product of the Probability of
Default, Exposure at Defauit and Loss Given Default. defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD): The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligaton, either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaming
lifeume (Lifetime PD) of the obligation

Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD repy the Company’s exp of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD vanies by type of counterparty. type and preference of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (ED): EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the ume of default

Undrawn loan commitment ECL 15 calculated on the undrawn loan commitments considening of same stage for part disbursed cases and Stage | for fully undisbursed cases. This is shown in
the balance sheet as @ provision

Forward-looking i ! i overlay) 15 included 1n determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected
credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongomng basis:

Offsetting Financial instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance shect where there is a Jegally enforceable right to offset the recogmised amounts and there 1s an intention
1o settle on a net basis or reahise the asset and sewle the habihiy | ly. The legally ble right musi not be conlingent on future evenis and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default. insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterpany.

into equity and liability component based on the terms of the contract. On 1ssuance of the said instruments. the hability component 1s arnived by
ing the gross sum (i i . ifany) at @ market rate for an i! ibls This amount is ficd as a financial liability measured at

d cost until it s extingu: on ion or redemp The inder of the proceeds is d as cquity of comp fimancial This is d and
included in sharcholders™ equity, net of income tax effects. and not subsequently re-measured.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost attnibutable to and of qualifying assets arc capitalised as a part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use
Ancillary costs incurred m with the of gs are adjusted with the proceeds of the borrowings and recogmised using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

Other borrowing costs are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss in the peniod m which they are incurred.
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£)
@

Employee benefits
Short term emplovee benefits
Shor-term emplovee benefits are expensed in the vear in which the related services are provided. A liability is recogmised for the amount expecied to be paid if the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the emplovee and the obli can be d reliably
(ii) Defined Contribution Plan
Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Emplovees' State | are defined as b plan and charged as expenses duning the period in which the employees perform
(iii) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
For defined benefit gratuity plan, the cost of providimg benefits is d d using the projected unit credit method. with actuanal valuations beng carmed out at the end of cach annual
reporting period. The present value of the defined benefit obl is d d by the future cash outflows using market vields available on government bonds
The effect of the changes ising actuarial gains and losses) 1o the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the retum on plan assets (excluding interest). is reflected in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the penod in which they occur d in other ve income 15 reflected immediately in

other equity and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit & Loss. Past scrvice cost 1s recogmised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the penod of a plan amendment. Net interest 1s
calculated by applving the discount rate at the beginning of the peniod to the net defined benefit hability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categonsed as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements):

- net interest expense of income; and

- remeasurement of net defined benefit liability and assets

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the line item employee benefits expense. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the faur value of plan assets. Management esumates the
DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuary. Actuanal gains/ losses from re-measurements of the liability/ asset are included in other comprehensive income

The reti benefit obligat ised in the balance shoet represents the actual defict or surplus in the Company s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits

h)

i

k)

Company’s liabilites towards d absences 1o emplovees are accrued on the basis of valuations. as at the Balance Sheet date. carried out by an independent actuary using Projected
Uinit Credit Method. Actusnial gains and losses compnse experience adjustments and the effects of changes m actuanal ions and are d iately in the Si of Profit
and Loss

Provisi i liabilities and asseis

Provisions arc recognised when the Company has a preseat obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past eveat. 11 is probable that the Cmnpam will be requred to settle the obligation,
and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the cffect of the time value of money 1s matenal. pr are d d by di 2 the expeeted future cash flows

1o net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ufmunc\ and, where appropriate. the nsks specific to the habiliy

r\pmm!obllgsuonﬂﬂlrmmﬁomplﬂn’uﬂs.w"mtlnsuﬂvno{pmhnbkﬂmlnnmﬂﬂmufrmmmnsmiibcmqmmdmscnizurirdllblccsnmlenfﬂmammcnmbemdtls

i as a gent liability. C ilities arc also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future cvents not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company. where the possibility of any outflow of
resources in settlement 15 remote. are not disclosed as contingent liabihinies.

C assets are not ised in the financial C asscts are losed where an inflow of cconomic benefits is probable. Provisions, contmgent liabilities and
contingent assets arc reviewed at cach Balance Sheet date.

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It 15 recopmised in profit or loss cxcept to the extent that 1t relates 1o items recognised directly 1n Other Comprehensive Income

Current ax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior vears are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid 1o, the taxation authorities in accordance with Income Tax

Act. 196]. The fax rates and tax laws vsed 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted. or substantively enacted. at the reporting date [t is measured using tax rates cnacted or
b 1y enacied at the reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilitics are offset only 1f, the Company

a) has a legally enforceable nght 1o sct off the recognised amounts: and

b) intends cither to setile on a net basis, or 1o realis the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or 1n equity). Current tax tiems are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or dircctly in cquity

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the hability method on temporany differences ansing between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounis in the financial statements
Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting penod and are expected 10 apply when the related deferred ax asset is
realised or the deferred tax hability 15 settled. Deferred tax assets are d for all ible temporary and unused tax losses only il it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available 1o utilise those temporary differences.

“The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting daie and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be unlised Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recogmsed to the extent that it has become probable that future
1axabie profits will allow the deferred ax asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (@ither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recogmsed in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or dircetly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable nght exists 1o set off current 1ax assets against current tax habilities and the deferred taxes relaie to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authonty.

Foreign Currency Transactions

T i in foreign ics are d at the rates of exchange prevailing ai the dates of the transactions. At the end of cach reporung period, monetary assels and liabilities
d d in foreign are lated at the rate pr ling at that datc. Ni v items that are measured 1 terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-wanslated
Exchange diffcrences on monctary items are rocognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which these arise, except for i arising on of long-
term monetary iiems that in suhstance forms pant nf(‘unp-m. s net in foraign 1 is in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (component of OCT) unil the
drsposal of the investment. at which time such exch is d in the of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank and shori-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less that are readily convertible 10 known amounts of cash
and which arc subject to an insigmficant nsk of change in valuc
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n

m)

o)

a)

4

Leases

A coniract is, or contains, a Jease if the contract conveys the nght o control the use of an identificd asset for a penod of ume in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses 1f a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the confract. A contract is, or contains, 3 leasc if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a peniod tume in exchange for consideration.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date, except for shon-term leases of twelve months o less and leases for which the undertying asset is
of low value. which are expensed in the statement of profit and loss on a strmghi-line basis over the lease term.

The lease hiability is mitially measured at t!u: present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or. if not
readily i the i b ng rate specific to the country, term and currency of the contract.

Leas¢e payments can include fixed payments, wnnhlepumems:hldcpﬂﬁmmmdﬂmmhmnmn\eoumwm as well as any extension or purchase opiions. if the Company
is reasonably certain lo excrcise these options. The lease hability is sub at ized cost using the effective interest method and remeasured with a corresponding
nhmmuuluulerchnslngh—ofmnmnknﬂnnsnulngunfmlnscpnnﬂusmmsenﬁucmmchmormlndcxuuwmmuuofmudupum

The right-of-use asset compnises. at inception. the initial lease Liability. any initial direct costs and. when applicable. the obligations to refurbish the assct, less any incentives granted by the
lessors. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated. on a straight-line basis. over the lease term. if the lease wansfers the ownership of the underlving asset to the Company at the end of
the lease term or, if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, over the cstimated uscful life of the underlying assct. Right-of-usc assets arc also

subject 10 testing for impairment if there is an indicator for impairment. Variable lease payments not included in the measurcment of the lcase liabilitics are expensed 10 the of
nneratinns in the nerind in which the mvents or conditinne which tripser thaee navments aeenr In the siatement of finmmeial nocition neht-nface aceets and lease lahilities are clascified on the
chm:nl Reporting

ding o Ind AS 108, ification of op is based on Chief Operating Deaision Maker (CODM} approach for making about all to the segment

and asscssing its performance. The business m:h\rlt‘«' oflhc Company falls within one business segment viz. “Financing Activities™

Earning per equity share
The basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit afier tax for the vear atin le 1o the equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equuty shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, profit after tax for the vear attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duning the vear are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the peniod. unless they have been issued at a later
date. In computing the dilutive camings per share, only potential equity shares that arc dilutive and that cither reduces the camings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company cnters into denivative financial o manage ils exp rale risk and foreign exchange rate nsk. Denvanves held include foreign exchangefonward contracts,

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valve at the date of a denivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at cach balance sheet date. The resulting
ganvioss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging mstrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge relatonship. The Company designates certain dervatives as hedges of highly probable forecast iransactions {cash flow
hedges). A denvative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvanve wath a negative fair value is recogmised as a financial liability,

Hedege accounting policy

The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and forcign currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for
iransaciions that meet specific criteria. At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally d and the hedge rel hip to which the Company wishes 10 apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for ing the hedge The mcludes the Company s nsk management objective and suategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction. the nature of the risk being hedged. hedge ratio and how the Company would assess the effectiveness of
changes in the hedging instrument 's fair vatue in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged 1fem’s fair valuc or cash flows attributable 10 the hedged nisk. Such hedges are expected 1o be
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assesscd on an on-going basis to determing that they actually have been highly effective throughout the

Cash Now hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to vanability i cash flows that 1s attributable 10 a p lar risk d with & ised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest
payments on vanable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit and loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging mstrument is inwally recogmsed direcdy in OCI within cquity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is
recogmised immediately m Finance Cost in the statcment of profit and loss.

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain of loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of
the statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires,is sold. terminated, exercised. or when a hedge no longer mnm the eriteria for hedge accounting. any cumulative gain or

loss that has been recognised in OC| at that ime remarns in OC| and 1s recogmised when the hedged forecast 1s ul d in the of profit and loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCl is diatet ferred to the of profit and loss.

The Company 5hcd9ngpolmoulnllmsmd&cﬂ\ehndmmuonﬂ-psmhcmdmdnwmuwhrdﬁnmmﬁ Hedge i 15 ot the of the
hedge relationship. and through peniodic ive effecti I that an hip exists between the hedged item and hedging instrumemt. The Company

enters into hedge relationships where the crinical terms of the hedging instrument match with the terms of the hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is

Cash Flow Statements
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whercby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the cffects of transactions of a non-cash naturc, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and rem of income or expenses associated with imvesting or financing cash flows: The cash flows from operating. mvesting and financing activities of the

Share issue expenses
Share 1ssuc expenscs are adjusted from the share premium account in terms of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013

Standards issued but not vet effective
Mimstry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) noufics new standard or amendments 10 the cxasting under C (Indian A ing Rules as 1ssued from ume 1o ime for
the year ended March 31,2024 MCA has not notified any new standard or amendments (o the existng standard applicable to the company
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5 Cash and cash equivalenty

Asat
31 March
2024
Cash oo hand 61274 T65 60
Balances with banks - m current sccounts 40785 13,562 96

5.320.59 14,328.56

& Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As st
31 March 31 March

2024 23
Bank deposits with onginal maturity of more than 3 months 3.229.70 197745
Cash collateral agninst boerowings 470.97 217

3.780.67 5,489.62
“The ahove bank deposits mehude deposits under ben of INR 3740.45 lakhs (Y 2022-23 INR 4,465 45 lakhs)
**Cash collateral paid to avml borrowing limits. The Company recetves inferest income on the said cash collateral at a stated rate on vearly basis.

7 Loans
As st As at
31 March 31 March

2024 2023
At amartised cost
Loan assets 158,062.31 101,659 58
Stall loan R Bt 36235
Total Gross 158,862.32 101,659.59
Less: lmpairment loss allowance (1.092.09) (563.82)
Total Net 156,970.23 101,093.77
Secured by tangible assets
Hypotheeation of equitable mortgage of inmovable property. eic 157.694.04 101.297.24
Unseeured 368 78 362 35
Total Gross 158,062.32 101,659.59
Less: Impairment loss allowsnee (1.092.09) (565 82)
Total Net 156,970.23 101,093.77
Loan in [ndia
Public sector - =
Others 158.062.32 101.659.59
Total Gross 158,062.32 101 59
Less: Imparment loss allowance (1.092.09) (563.82)
Total Net 156,970.23 101,893.77
Notgs

=

"

Loans are non-derivative fimancinl assets which generate a fixed or variable interest mcome for the Company, The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the
counterpartics

Loans granted by the Company are secured by cquitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the progerty and/or undertaking o create a securnty andior hypothecation of assets

Loan commmtment ameount 15 INR 19,593 63 lakhs as on 31 March 2024 (INR 8 494,63 lakhs as on 31 March 2023}

Durmg the vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company has assigned a pool of certamn loans amoanting to INR 19,268 39 and INR 2,009,537 lakhs respectively by
way of direct assignment transachions. These loan assets have been de-recogmsed from the loan portfolio of the Company as the sale of loan assets is an absolute assignment and
transfer on a 'no-recourse’ basis. The Company continues 1o sct a5 & servicer (o the assigmment transaction on behalf of assignee. In terms of the assignment agreement., the Company

The Company has not granted any loans agamst secunty of shares or aganst gold jewellery as collateral dunng the financial vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The Comipany hus nol granted any lodns and advances in the nature of loans 1o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related partics (8 defined under the Companies Act, 2013 either
severally or jointly with any other person that are repayable i demand or withoul specifying any ferms or period of repayment

Break up of loans Asset
Particulars Asal As al
31 March 31 March

2024 2023
Housing loan 11281287 62 864 90
N~ housing loan 4488116 3843233
Subiolal 15769403 181.297.23
Staff foan 36828 362,35
TOTAL 158 1,659.55
Credit quality of assels

The table below shows the credil quality and the maximum expostre (o crodit risk hased on the Company's imternal credit rating sysiem and vear-cod stage classification. The amounts

P d e gross of Lk . Details of model and ECL allowances are assessed at the collective pool level
As of 31 March 2024 Loan to Impairment loss allowance
Risk catégorisation Heningan /Tom:heaing Total Hodiag b Tow-hewsing
ioans nans

Stage | 10621423 3777204 143.986.27 178.15 3090 209.05
Stage 2 5763 56 6,408 20 12,7176 120,17 24,90 20507
Stage 3 #35.08 700.92 1.536.00 39064 287.33 677.97
Total 11281287 TFELI6 15749403 48896 10313 1.092.09
As of 31 March 2023 Loan fo sy all

Non- housing Non- housing
Risk categorisation Housing loan - Total Housing lean Joans Total
Stage | 57.532.85 33891 64 9142449 13275 5281 185.56
Stage 2 4,287 10 9.298.49 7159 5470 126.29
Stage 3 25359 57435 146 49 10748 253.97
Total 3% 43233 19129723 35083 214.99 56581
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1y Reconciliation of Gross carrying ameunt (Housing Loan)

] i 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as on 1 April 2022 40,547.87 477160 110.99 4543046
New assets onginated or purchased 2784231 203.15 - 2804546
Asscts derecogmsed or repaid (excluding write offs) (9,731 34) (861 30) (IR36) (10,611.02)
Transfers from Stage | 290361 280867 94,94 -
Transfers from Stage 2 177115 (1.915 40 14425 -
Transfers from Stage 3 647 469 116 -
Gross carrying amount as on 31 March 2023 5753285 501139 320.66 62.864.90
Gross carrying amount as on | April 2023 5753283 501139 32066 6286490
New assets onginated or parchased 6439333 24540 - 64,640.73
Assets derecognised or repaid (excludmg write offs) (14.03097) (628.36) 133.44) (14692.77)
Transfers from Stage | (3423335 319587 22749 0.01
I'ranslers from Stage 2 1,705.43 (2.069.96) 364,53 =
Iransfers from Stage 3 3493 9.3 (44 16) -
Gross carrying amount as on 31 March 2024 106.214.22 5,763.57 B35.08 112 R12.87
Reconcilistion of impairment loss allowance Stage 1 Stage 2 5 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as on | April 2022 165.54 11533 4464 325.51
New assets onginated or purchased 16624 7443 1015 250.82
Assels derecognised or repaid fexcluding write offs) (121.70) (89.32) (14.48) (225.50)
Impact of ECL of Exposures transferred between stages durmg the year
I'ransfers from Stage | (RO.68) 3687 43 81 -
Transfurs from Stage 2 3135 (65.89) 62,54 -
Transfers from Stage 3 - 016 10.16) .
Gross carrying amount as on 31 March 2023 132.78 TL59 146,49 35083
Gross carrying amount as on | April 2023 13275 7159 146 49 350.83
New pssets onganated of purchased 26.16 349.83 3. 381.25
Assets dorecognised or repaid (excluding wric offs) (5.9%) (1205 (25.09) “3an
Impuct of ECL of Exposures transferred betwien stages during the year -
Transfers from Stage |1 (6.08) 571 037 -
Transfers from Stage 2 2102 (298 81) 27179 -
Transters from Stage 3 10.29 388 (14.17) =
Gross ¢arrying amount as on 31 March 2024 178.16 120.17 39063 6RR-96

Reconciliation of Gross carrying smount (Non-housing Loan)

el Stage 1 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount as on 1 April 2022 21.343.06 3476.57 131.89 24.551.52
New assets originated or purchased 15498 79 728 9% 908 16,236.86
Assets derecognised or repaid (exciuding write offs) (2.053397) (289.94) (12.13) (2.356.05)
Fransfers from Stage | (2,264.37) 220767 5669 -
Transfers from Stage 2 (1,448 34) R854 -
Tramsfers from Stage 3 1216 (2049) :
Gross carrying amount as on 31 March 2023 4.287.10 25358 38,432.33
Gross carrving amount as on 1 April 2023 3359164 4.287.10 25358 38432
New assets onginated or purchased 26.376.50 117401 (16891) 1758160
Assets derecogsed or repad (excluding wite offs) (20,578 58) £51130% (42.88) (21,132.76)
Transfers from Stage [ (3,194 52y 298390 21062 -
Transters from Stage 2 1. 38 (1.530.38) 47030 -
Transfers from Stage 3 1742 4 87 (2229) -
Gross carrying amount as on 31 March 2024 37,772.04 640820 T00.92 4438116

of imp Tass Stage | Stage2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as on | April 2022 7.1 63.65 53.06 203.82
New assets onginaled or purchased 7551 4944 1358 138.53
Assets derecogmised or repud (excluding wiite offs) (6209 147 35) (1792) (127.36)
Impact of ECL of Exposures tramsferred between stages during the vear
Transfers from Stage | (49.80) 2412 2568 -
T'ransfers from Stage 2 206 (35.27) 3320 - .01
Transters from Stage 3 0.01 0.12 (0.13) -
Grass carrying amount as on 31 March 2023 5281 54.70 10747 214.9%
Gross carrying amount as en | April 2013 5181 S4.70 10747 214.98
New assets ongmated or purchased (5.25) 54.79 20364 215318
Assets derecogmsed or repad (excluding write offs) (26.69) (10.79) (27.55) = 65.03
Impact of ECL of Exposures transferred between stuges during the year =
Transfers from Stage | 45N 427 030 - 000
Transters from Stge 2 g3 120.13) 832 -
Transfers from Stage 3 179 207 (480} =

Grows carrying amount ax on 31 March 2024 30.92 814.59 %732 10313
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k) Expected Credit Losses ("ECL")
For financial reporting, expected credit loss is a caleulation of the present value of the amount expected not W be recovered on financial assets. Credil risk is the polential that the
obligor and counterparty will fail to meet its financial obligations 1o the lender This requires an effective assessment and management of the credit risk at individual and portfolio level

The key comp of Credit Risk ure:
) Probability of default ("PDY') represents the likelihood of default over a defined time honzon. The account Jevel delinguency has been while asnig PD at a portfolio
level. The PDs are computed for homogenous portfolio segments.

b) Exposure at default (EAD): rep total amount tmg including accrued mierest as at the reporting date. Considering that PD determined above factors in amount at
default, there 13 no separate requirement to estimate EAD

<) Loss given default (LGD): represents the proportion of EAD, that 1s hikely-loss post defoult. The d recovery cashflows are d d such that the LGD calealation factors
un the NPV of the recoveries.

Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 dit-i d) for ECL caleul. typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on
contractual payments. The Company may also classify a loan n Stage 3 if there is significant deterioation mn the loan collateral, detenioration in the financial condition of the barrower
or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detnmental effect on the loan repay Further, 1 with RBI ¢l dated 12

November 2021, financial instrument will continue Lo be classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) ull the ume all the overdue contractual pavments/arrears are paid by the borrower

Delinquency buckets considered for the staging of loans:

- 130 davs past due (DIPD) and overdue up to one calender month are classified as stage |

- 31-90 DPD and overdue more than one calender month, but not stage 3, in addition, SICR sccounts are classified s stage 2, and

- 90 DPD + Accounts wdentified by the Company s Non- p Accounts under regulatory guidelines + objective evidence for impairment (Quahtative Overlay) are classified

Significant increase in credit risk
The Company wa]u-hsllwlmmmmmgnmgbnus The Company also assesses if there has been a significant merease m credit nsk sines the previously nsk taking mio
de bath e kev factor that mdscates siemificant merease m credit nisk 15 when contractual navments are more than 30 davs past due

Grouping financial assets measured on a collective bavis

The Compuny caleulates ECLS on a collective basis on Housing loans and Non-housing loans.

The Company has designed and operates its risk assessment model thal factors in both g ive as well as quali o the loans and the borrowers. The model uses
Tnstorical empincal data 1o arrive at factors that are indicative of futare eredit nsk and segments the portfolio on the basis of combimations of these parameters mto smaller bomogenous
portfolios from the perspective of credit behaviour. The Company groups these exposure into smaller homogencous portfohios, based on a combination of internal and external
charactenistics of the loans. Asset class such as home improvements and loans agmnst properties are mix of Housing and Non-housing loans and based on customer profiling and

1) Collateral
The Company 15 in business of secured lending and all loans are ad: Iy covered by cither residential collateral or ial collateral The collaierals are assessed at the time of
ongnation and are being reassessed as and when required. The factors d while eval of collateral are hiquidity, enforceabnbity, marketababity, n:-: a:v:l
cifictency m custody and and free from all wn the refevamt dh d phed with local by laws. The of collateral 1s

e team of independent and qualified technicallegal agencies. The Company has specified the maximum loan--value ratio for varous types of asset 1o be ncu-po:d a8
u!llau:rn] Such ratios commensurate with the relative risk u( the assets as prescribed by National Housing Bank and provides an adequate buffer agaist potential losses

1} The aforesmd loan mecludes 2642 58 lakh at 31 March 24 and 1 046 63 lakh at 31 March 23 towards unamortised stafl cost (1 ¢ ransactwon cost)

8 Investments
Asat Ax at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
At fair value through profit and loss
Investments m mutual funds 9.703.59 89 40
9,703.59 89,46

* Investments n mutual funds amounting o TNR 246 41 lakhs (previous vear INR 79,60 lakhs) are pledged agamst the erm fund based facilitics availed by the Company

9 Other financial assets

Asat As at
31 March 31 March

024 2023
Advancés to employees 61.00 8457
Interest acenued but not due vn loans L1738 134867
Interest on deposits 35187 23498
Seeurity deposits 240 68 97.99
Excess interest spread (E18) receivable 502815 115471

Other receivables

*Under Ind AS, with respect to Assygnment deals. the Company has created an EIS recervable (with ding credit w0 of profit and loss). which has been computed by
disvounting FIS 1o present value

Loans Interest accrued Total
(a) Particulars Asat Asat
Asat Asat Asat Asat 31 March 31 March
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 2024 2024
Housing loan 11281287 62,864 90 167805 909 11§ 114,490 92 63,773 98
Non- housing loan 44881 16 3843233 52783 43959 4540899 INRT1 92

157.694.03 101,297.23 220588 1348.67 159.899.90 102,645.90
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Notes to accounts for the period ended 31 March 2024
All amounts in INK lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Preperty, plant and equipment

Computer "'""":“ Digss Leatohilg Vehicles Total
Asat 1 April 2022 555.03 324 69.60 160,47 9534 1,204.65
Additions 21755 3012 404 12 B33 - 660,11
Disposals - - = - - -
As at 31 March 2023 17258 354.33 473712 168.80 95.34 1.864.77
As at 1 April 2023 77258 354.33 4172 168.80 9534 1864.77
Addibions 63289 308.91 H5 18 27114 - 129811
Dhspersals = - s
As at 31 March 2024 1405.47 66324 358.90 439.94 2”53 316288
Accumulated depreciation
As at | April 2022 38249 99.67 2591 18.01 46.16 5714
Charge for the period 13639 61.07 7267 60 45 1536 359
Disposals . - . - - -
As at 31 March 2023 518.87 160.74 98.59 7846 61.52 218.1%
As at | April 2023 S18.87 160.74 9859 TR.46 61.52 918.18
Charge for the peniod 32831 68 57 1RO 66 8284 10.59 67097
Ihsposals - - - - B -
Aw at 31 March 2024 847.18 2931 27928 16130 11 1,589.14
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 253.71 193.59 37543 90.34 33182 946.59
As at 31 March 2024 558.29 433,93 279.65 278.64 23.23 1573.74
Intangible assets

Software Total

As at | April 2022 23786 237.86
Additions. 163.55 163 35
Drsposals - -
As at 31 March 2023 40141 40141
As at | April 2023 40141 40141
Additions 187.07 187.07
Disposals - 3
As at 31 March 2024 58848
Accumulated depreciation
As at | April 2022 64.95 64.95
Charge for the peniod 14924 14924
Disposals 3 -
As at 31 March 2023
Asat 1 April 2023 21419 21419
Charge for the penod 165.15 16515
Disposals i :
As at 31 March 2024 9.34
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 187.22 187.22
As at 31 March 2024 209.14 209.14
Right to use asset
As at | April 2022 87724 877.24
Additions 2289 1289
Disposals 26.14) (26.14)
As at 31 March 2023 873.99 873.99
As at | April 2023 87399 87399
Additions 68226 682126
[isposals (410.80) - 410,80
Ax at 31 March 2024 1,145.46 114546
As at | April 2022 16347 263.47
Charge for the peniod 168 89 168 89
Dhspusals (1193) (11.63)
As at 31 March 2023 42043 420.43
As at | April 2023 42043 420.43
Charge for the period 168 58 16858
Dhsposals (U7769) (177.69)
As at 31 March 2024 41131 4113
Net carrying value
Ax at 31 March 2023 453.56 453.57
As at 31 March 2024 73403 73404

Note' The Company does not hold any immovable property as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, Al the lease agreements are duly executed i favour of the Company for
propertics where the Company s the lessee

New Delhi
NCR*
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Notes to accounts for the period ended 31 March 2024
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13 Other non-financial assets

A As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Advance to vendors 81503 1,090 64
Prepud expenses 207 68 245 00
Copial advance - o7
1 Tl 144581
14 Trade payables
As a1 Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Total outstanding dues to Micro enterpnise and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprise and small enterprises 33753 409 82
337.53 409.832
Details of dues to micro and small eaterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 20067) is as under:
‘The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an ﬂﬂ'uw Memarandum dated 26 August 2008 wiich recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention m ther dence withy its the Number as alkocated after filing 1o the Memorandum. Based on mformation recerved and avalable
wath the Company, lhrn:ur:|l‘mmupn:bkuhlhn&stk-odﬂmtmmmlﬂwllmqwxsnsinlimu
Asat As at
31 March 31 March
24 2023
The principal amount and the uterest due thereon remammg unpaid o any supplicr as al the end of cach sccounting year
Principal amount due 1 micro and small enterprises s =
Interest due on above
I'he mmount of mterest pasd by the buver in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amount of the
pavment made o the supphier bevond the appointed day durmg each acoounting yvear
The amount of interest due and pavable for the penod of delay 1n making paviment (which have boen paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the micrest specificd under the MSMED Act 2006 x
The amount of micrest accrued and remamung unpad at the end of each asccounting year x
The amount of further micrest remammg due and pavable even m the succeedmg vears, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small eoterprise for the purpose of disallowance as 8 deductible expenditure under sectm 23
Trade pavable ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024 Quista for from due date of
< | year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 vears Total
Micra, small and medium enterpriscs (MSMEs) - - . . -
Uthers 13Im 450 . - i3
Dhsputed dues (MSMEs)
Disputed dues (Others) - - - -
Uinbilled dues - - - - .
333.03 4.50 - - 33753
Trade payable ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023 *. following perinds from due date of
<1 year 12 2-3 years >3 years Total

Micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs) 5 - a = “
Others 409 82 . = = 40982
Disputed dues (MSMEs) . - < - i
Disputed dues (Others ) . - i s ;
Unbilled dues = - - - -
409.52 - - - 40982

15 Derivative financial invtruments

As at Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 023
Derrvative fimancial hability 20003 -
100.03 -
16 Debt securities
As sl As at
3t March 31 March
2024 w023
At amortised cost
Nom-convertible debentires IBAITTL 3347421
WAL saaTaan
1ebi scourtics m India TN 5941 89
bt secunties outade India 17.549 58 2723132
Total INAITL 33,174.21

Terms of Non-convertible debentures ('NCDs')
I'he Non-comvertible debentures are secured by exclusive hypothecation of prescat and future home Joan of standard recervable (net of financial charge, NPA's aid other charges cic.)
s per selection critena as defined in the respective Joan asrecement and personal gurantee gven by the managme director of the Comparn

b

I'he Comnany docs not have mm charees or satisfaction which are vet o be remstered with Reawstrar of Companies bevondd the stattory period.

<1 The Company has submutied monthly or quarterly retumn or statement of curvent assets with banks or financial nstiution in agreement with the books of account for bormowings taken
on the basts of secunty of loan assets

o

The Compu has used the borrowings from bank snd financial instituon for the specific purpose for whch 1t was taken

¢ Terms of redemption based an nominal value of debt securities and repayment terms

As at 31 March 2024 0-1 year >1-3 years >3- 8§ years > 8 years Tatal
Debt Securities

N rtible deb

THO0%-12.00% [ERr 1] 243881 024 - 243734
1201%-13 00% 457025 2,984 60 030 . 755515
13.01%-14 00% 270 781295 - - TRI024

14 101 %- 15 00%, 4274y 207862 - - 203589
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d

a

=]

15.01%-16.00% (%.16) 298469 - - 297553
281418
Noa-convertible debentures (Listed)
10.01%-11.00% (14.57) 363276 - - 361819
13.01%-14 00% 1.9049 12 1009625 - = 12.005 38
15,623.56
Total BAITT
As at 31 March 2023 0-1 year >1-3 vears >3- 8 years > 8 years Total
Debit Securities
N bk Unlisted
1 1L06%-12 00% - 242687 025
1201%-13 00% - 507830 0.15 - 507845
13.01%-14 00% 230203 777073 - 1007376
14 01%-15 00% #2821 202194 - - 2850135
15.01%-16.00% - 296795 296795
2339743
Nen-convertible debentures (Listed)
10.01%-11.00% - 3.603.48 - 3.603 48
13.01%:-14 00% = 617331 = 617331
977679
Total 317422
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 023
At amortised cost
Secured
Term Loan
From banks 26,698 87
From other partics $1.906.76

vable on demand

- 17249
External Commercial Borrowing 1413119
9273682 3734226

Borrowings i Indis T6.105.63 5784226
Borrowings outsade India 1663119 -
Total 92.736.82 §7.842.20

Sccured borrowings from banks and financial mstitutions camry rate of interest in the range of 6. 10% 1o 16 58% p.a. These loans are having teure of | w12 years from the date of
disbursement and are repavable m monthly or guanerly or six monthly nstalments. These loans are secured by exclustve hypothecation of present and fisture bome loan of standard
receivable (net of financial charge, NPA’s and other charges eic ) as per selection enitena as defined in the respective loan and personal given by the

director of the Company. The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial mstitution or other lender dunmg the vear

The working capital loan from Axis Bank Lid carry an inlerest rate of MCLR+3% pa for the financial vear ¢nded 31 March 2023 The loan is having a tenure of less than 12 month
from the date of disbursement and are repayable on demand awhich was paid i financial vear 31 March 2024

The Company does not have any chiarges or satisfaction which are yet w0 be regrstered with Registrar of Compames bevond the statutory penod.

“The Company has submitted monthly or quarterly return or statement of current assets with banks or financial institution i agreement with the books of account for borrowings taken
on the basis of security of current assels.

The Company has used the borrowmgs from bank and financial mstitution for the specific purpose for which it was taken

Terms of redemption based on nominal value of borrewings (other than debt securitics) and repayment terms

As at 31 March 2024 0-1 year >1-3 years >3- 5 years > 5 years Total

Term loans- from banks

£01%-9.00% B = = E %
9 01%-10.00% - R R = -

10.01%-1 1.00% 74794 151651 82028 = 308473
11.01%-12.00% 1.36135 254339 40520 - 430993
12.01%-13.00% 190084 268175 1.884 83 45144 691885
13.01%- 14.00% 354153 4,701 50 1,499.55 666 67 1040024
14.01%-15.00% 629.26 - - = 629.26
15.01%- 16.00% 34209 346,95 - - 689 04
16.01%-17 0% 65793 - - - 63793

17.01%-18.00% 0 : - -
18.01%-19.00% = 3 = 5

Overdraft - from banks
13.01%-14.00% = e = =

Working capital loan - from banks
10.01%-11.00% - = 3 =

Term loans- from others
701 %-8 0 - - = = -
R01%-9.00% 48137 T74T74 27778 = 133389

9.01%=10.00% 5128 2487 . - 7615
10.01%-11.00% %3333 1,666 67 - = 2,500.00

11.01%-12.00% 15027 33728 - - 48732
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Naotes to accounts for the period ended 31 March 2024
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12.01%-13.00% 2.667.00 6.594.23 377184 1.273.75 14,306 82
13.01%-14.00% 668315 11,406 25 265515 - 20,744 55
14.01%- 15.00% 428111 344022 7125 - 779258
15.01%-16.00% 117210 747.19 - - 1.919.30
16.01%-17.00% 1.095.24 706,76 27741 - 207941
17.01%-18.00% 430.75 - - - 430.75
18.01%-19.00% 3381 - - - 3381
ECB- from others

701%-8 00% = - - -

801%-9 00% < X : - "
9.01%-10.00% = 16.49 1.638.43 - - 1.621.94

10.01%-11.00%

1101 %-12.00% E . . - -
12.01%-13.00% - 105196 311829 4,169 50 833975
13.01%- 14.00% 5 - B

4,169.50 & - 4.169.50

As at 31 March 2023 0-1 year >1-3 years >3- 5 years > 5 years Total

Term loans- from hanks

B 01%-9.00% = =5 5 = =
901 %-10,00% - 3 s
10.01%-11.00% 5734 1,504,838 149117 KR TR 4.142.17

1101%-12.00% 53353 - - - 55553
1201%-13.00% 85013 189511 1.904.90 205306 670320
13 01%-14 00% 1RI8.96 271280 697 11 ¥ 5.228.87
14.01%- 15 00% 161699 657.62 - - 227461
15.01%-16 00% 25071 775.61 - - 1.026.32
16.01%-17 (0% 1.838.03 63787 - - 251590
17.01%-18 00% - - - - -
18.01%-19.00% - - £ =

Overdrafi - from banks
13.01%-14 00%, 17249 T ] - 17249

Warking capital loan - from banks
10.01%-11 00% =

Term loans- from others

TO01%-8 00% 27178 T40.74 72338 - 174190
801 %-9.00% oo 182.00 = " 29300

GO0 %10 00% 3846 R 9% - - 12744
10.01%-11.00% - - - ot
THO1%-12.00%, - - - - -
12.01%-13.00% 88075 2,187 40 1968 30 3346 516991

13.01%-14 00% 222966 3.686.70 97702 - 689338
14.01%-15.00% 529967 682009 T06.41 - 12.826.17
15.01%-16.00% 151505 1.889.73 2710 = 343248
16.01%-17.00% 157147 1277 34 - - IRARR|
17.01%-1 8 00% 35353 - = = 35353

18.01%-19.00% 50075 ERE 1] 2 > 336 36




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited

Notes to accounts for the period ended 31 March 2024
All amounts in INK lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

18

5

Lease Hability

Lease Liatlity

Leases:

Asat Ay at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023

82577

BI5.77

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for buildmgs and office premises. Generally, the Company 15 restnicted from assiging and subleasing the leased assets. The
Company applies the short-term lease recognilion exemption to 1ts short-term leases (1 ¢, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commiencement date and do

not contain a purchase opton),

Lease liabi

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition

Aceretion of interest

Payments

Derecognized during the year

Balance at the end of the vear

A i ised in the S of profit and loss

Depreciation on nght 1 use assets
Interest expense on lease habilities (included in finance cost)
Expenses related to short-term leases or low value leases (included in other expenses)

Amounts recognised in Cash flow statement

Cash outflow for leases

i ities of lease on as di J basis are as given below:

Not later than a vear

Later Unim one year and 1ot Tater than five vears
Later than five vears

Total

Notes:

As at Asat
31 March 31 March

2024 2023
563.65 To1.58
63916 1863
#1.32 9437
(146.46) (236 04)
305.80) (14.89)
831.87 563.65

" Forthe  For the period
period ended ended
31 March 31 March

2024 2023
168 58 168 89
81.32 9437
41354 17331

For the period  For the period

ended ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
146.46 236.04
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
17739 124.41
64838 41998
. 1584
826.00 S60.23

When measuring lease liabilities for operating leases. the Company discounted lease pavmients using incremental borrowig rate at the date of inception of the leases: The weighted

average pre x rate applied is 14.76% pa

Other financial liabifities

Employee benefit payvable

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Loan pendmg disbursement

Other payables.

Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits

Ciratuty (refer note 377

lLeave encashment (refer note 37(c))

Other Provisions

Imparment allowance on undrawn loan commitment

Other non- financial labilities

Statutory dues

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
446.66 162.56
160518 963 34
9.32761 439841
11,90 532431
Asat As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
12320 63,08
T353R 10 82
19 96 -
21878 75.90
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
745.20 270.39

745.20 270.39
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22 Equity share capital

Asat 31 March 3024 Asat 3T March 2013
Number (Absolut Amount umber (Absolut  Amount
Authorised
Fquity shares of INR 10 each 22651005 226531 22,653,005 226521
Preference shares of INR' 10 cach 37,546,905 3,754 69 37.546,905 3,754 69
60,200,600 6,020.00 60,200,000 6,020.00
Tssued, subseribed and fully paid up
Fquity shares of INR 10 cach 20.302.342 203023 14,826,290 1.48263
20,302,342 2,030.23 14,826 290 148263
Preference shares
Senes A Compulsory converible preference shares of INR 10 each 6,124,939 61249 6124939 61249
Sertes B Compulsory gonverible preference shares of INR 10 each 7,532,265 75323 14999611 1.499.97
Series O Compul: ble | shares of INR 10 cach 4422355 44223 4422355 4223
Series 1) Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each 10.221.952 102220 SR SR411
28,301,511 2.830.14 31388016 3.138.80
(i Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Asat_31 March 2024 “ai 31 March 2023 =
Numbers Amount Numbery Amount
Equity shures of INR 10 each
Balance as at beginning of the year 14826290 148263 13,181,040 1,318.10
Add: Shares issued during the vear 5476052 34761 1645250 164 53
Outstanding at the end of the year (2) 20,302,342 1.030.23 14,826 290 1482.63
Preference shares of INR 10 each
Series A
Balance as at beginning of the year 6,124939 612.49 6,124,939 612.49
Add: Preference shares 1ssued duning the vear = = = =
Balance as at end of the year (b) 6,124.939 612.49 6,124,939 612.49
Series B
Balance as ai beginning of the year 14999611 149996 14999611 1499.97
Add: Preference shares issued duning the year - -
Less: Converted Into Equity Share 7467346 746.73
Balance as at end of the year (c) 7532265 753.23 14999611 1,499.97
Series C
Balance as at beginning of the year 1422355 44223 - -
Add: Preference shares issued during the vear - - 4422355 44223
Batance as at end of the year (d) 4422358 442.23 4422355 442.23
Series I
Balance as at beginning of the year 34 384 - -
Add: Preference shares issued during the vear 4380841 438 3840011 %4
Balance as at end of the year (d) 10,221,952 1,022.20 SE41L111 S84
Total [{a) + (b) + (e} + (d)} 48, 53 86038 46214 4,621

(ii) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Comnpany has only one class of equity shares having the par value of the cach share 1s INR 10, Each sharcholder shall have voting right equal to sharcholding percentage of the
total of the shares tsued mchsding compulsory convertible preference shares on an s if comverted basis. The exputy shares are entithed 10 recerve dividend as declared from time 10
time. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible W receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount, m proportion (o their

(iii) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to preference shares
The Company issued Series-A compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) during the vear ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 The CCPS are convertible mto 4301683
equity shares of face value of INR 10 each by the holder by notice m wrating 1o the promoters and the Company. and which date shall not be Later than 19 years from the issuance of the
Series-A CCPS ¢ e 3 February 2018 and 31 July 2018). divadend of 0.00 1% 10 be given subject o dth d amd © as stated m sharehold

The Company issued 14999611 Series-B CCPS during the vear ended 31 March 2020, The CCPS holders nuy convert CCPS into Equity Shares of face value of Rs 10 ¢ach by
giving notice n writing to the promoters and the Company. and the date of which shall not be later than 19 vears from the date of issuance of the Senes-B CCPS (1e. 19 Augost 2019,
25 February 2020, 3 March 2020), Each series B CCPS shall be converted into 84331 | equity shares and 2366594 equity shares , and subject 1o the terms and conditions mentioned i
the SHA dated 9 August 2019 such ss schieving certain targets of the portfolic, mantsin specific PAR percentage as defined in SHA

Um Ocwber 27. 2023 the Company had converted 62,73 325 Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each held by Gojo & Company, Inc and 11,94.021
Compulsorily conventible preference shares of Face value of Rs 10 cach beld by Capital 4 Development Asia Fund Cooperaticl U A into 46 00,437 equity shares and 8 73 615 equity
shares respectively

The Company has issued 4,422,355 Series-C compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) during the vear ended 31 March 2022 The CCPS are convertible st any time mio
equity shares of face value INR 10 each by the holder by notice in writing 10 the promoters and the Company, and which date shall not be later than 19 years from the issuance of the
S CCPS (13 October 2021) Each Senes-C CCPS shall be convert mto | equity share subgect 1o il and i as stated w sharcholders
agreement entered on 30 September 2021

The Company has issued 5,841,111 Senes-D compulsory convertible preference shares (CCP'S) during the year ended 31 March 2023 The CCPS are convertible at any time nto
cquity shares of face value INR 10 each by the bolder by notice m wnting to the promoters and the Company. and which date shall not be later than 19 vears from the issuance of the
Series-1) CCPS. Each Series-[) CCPS shall be convert into | equity share subject to anti-difution ad and ¢ | s stated in sharehold enered
on 31 March 2023

Un November 016, 2023 the Company had sssed Series D for 43,80 84 | Compulsorily convertible preference shares of fice value of Rs. 10 each to TEACHERS INSURANCE AND
ANNUITY ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA ("TIAA") at a premium of Rs. 161,20 cach amounting 1o approximately INR 75 Crotes.

On October 31, 2023, 46,00,437 cquity shares held by Gojo & Company, Inc, were further transferred 1o Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (“TIAA™) and on
November 03, 2023, 8,75 equity shares held by Capital 4 Development Asia Fund Cooperatiel LA were further transferred o Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of

(iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2024 Ax 21 31 March 2023
Number of share % of holdi dumber of share % of holdin;
Equity shares of INR 10 each
Ms, Kaayal Ajaz limy 10,181,000 50.15% 9,722,667 63.58%
{ireen Scraps Advertisement Pyt Lid. 1,645 240 B 10% 1645240 oY%
Pdr. Kunal Sikka 2.000.000 9.85% 000,506 13.49%,

Giojo & Company. Inc 020 3.69% 750,020 306%
Teachers Insurance and Anmuity Association of America (“TIAAT) 3.476.052 2697%




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to accounts for the period ended 31 March 2024
All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

(v) Details of Isoriky ible prefe shares held by shareholders holding more than $% of the aggregate shares in the company
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
N of share % of ber of share % of hold
Preference shares of INR 10 each
Serles A
Gojo & Company. Inc 6.124.939 100% 6.124.939 100%
Series B
Gojo & Company, nc 5216382 69.39% 11.499.707 76.67%
Capital 4 Development Asin Fund 2305883 30.61% 3.499.904 23.33%
Series C
Sabre partners AIF Trust 4422355 100.00% 4,422,355 100 00%,
Series D
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America ("TIAA™) 10,221,952 100.00% s8I 100.00%
(v) Sharcholding of promoters
s 2t a at arc
Number of share % of holding  sumber of share % of bokding
Equity shares
Ms. Kaajal Ajjaz. Imi 10 181.000 50.15% 9.722.667 63.58%
Mr. Kunal Sikka 2.000.000 9 85% 2,000,000 13.49%
(v} The Company has nof issted any shares without cash consideration and there has not been any buy-back of shares in the five years immediaiely preceding the balance sheet date ie 31
March 2024
23 Other equity
= Oiher
Share Special reserve comprehensive
Securities application under Section Retained income - Hedging
premium  money peading 29C of the NHB carnings Remeasureme reserve
allotment Act, 1987 nts
of Aafimad
Balance as at | April 2022 10527.32 - 36088 587.18 062 -
Profit for the period - - - 1,606.3%9 - -
Additions dunng the penod 1144632 = < - ]
Share 1ssue expenses (403 40) - - - -
Other comprehensive income (net ol ) - - - - 0.43
Transfer 1o special reserve under seetion 29C of NHB Act, 1987 - - 32128 (321.28) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 21.570.24 - 63216 187230 1Los -
Balance as at | April 2023 21570.24 - 682.16 1872.30 Los -
Profit for the peniod s = < 4.388.00 - -
Additions during the penod 706192 2339 S =
Share 1ssue expenses (261 96) - - -
Premmum of allotment of conversion of CCPS 199.13
Cnther comprehensive meome (net of tax) - - - - 4.61) (335.30)
Transfer to special reserve under section 29C of NHE Act, 1987 - - 917.60 (917.60) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 28.569.33 22.39 1,599.76 S5.542.70 - 3.56 - 335.30

Nature and purpose of special reserves:
Securities premium account
Sceurtties premium account 18 used to record the premuium on issu¢ of shares. The reservee 1s utilised i aecordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Special reserve

Section 29C (1) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance mstitution which s a Company shall create 2 reserve fund and transfer therem a sum not
less than tweaty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed i the statement of profit and loss before any dividend 15 declared. For this purpase any specinl reserve created hy the
Company under Section 36(1 Kviii) of Income tax Act. 1961 15 considered to be an eligible transfer. Duning the period ended 31 March 2024, the Company has transferred an amount
of INR 917 60 lakhs (31 March 2023, INR 321.28 Jakhs) to the reserve in terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank ("NHB") Aet, 1987

Retained earnings
Retaned carmmngs represents the amount of secunmulated earmmgs of the Cormpany

Other comprehensive income - Ri defined benefit plans
Represents the cumulative actuanial gans/(losses) anising on defined benefit plans classified under (Other Comprehensive ucome
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24

25

26

Interest Income

On financial asseis measured at amoriized cost
Interest income on:
on housmg and non-housing loans
- deposits with banks
cash collateral agamst borrowings
- mterest income on staff loan

secunty deposits

Fees and commission income

Appheanon fees

Ohther fee meome

Notes:

The performance obligation in regards of arrangements where fees is charged per transacton executed 1s recognized at pomt n nme when the amount 15 realized.

Geographical markets

India

Qursade Indi

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Tuming of revenue recognition

Services transferred at 4 pont m tme

Services ransferred over nme

Total revenuc from contracts with customers

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on instruments i fair value through profit and loss
Reahsed
- Unreabsed

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

Net gan on derecogninon of Anancial mstruments under amortised cost

Other income

Prohr on rermunaton of leases
Inrerest on income tax

Finance cost

On financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest on horrowings & debr securines
Interest on lease habihines

Interest on meome rax

Toterest on cash collweral

For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
30,167.65 20,533.39
349.65 240.33
+47.09 3840
5722 430
7.89 6.58
30,629.50 20,882.61

For the period ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
241748 112612
264238 1.467.76
5,0659.86 2,593.88
5.059.806 239388
5,059.86 2,593.88
5,059.80 259388
5,059.86 2,593.88
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
853,50 77.23
99.22 1.38
954.72 78.61
For the peniod ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
4.954.97 632.20
4,954.97 632.20
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
B3.87 1.83
- 145
85.87 3.29

For the period ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
15,509.23 TLA41.73
R1.32 94.37
1.53 30.26
36.87 49.32
15,928.95 11,615.88
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30

31

32

33

Fees and commission expenses

lagal and rechnical expenses

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages and bonus

Cantebution ro provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Ciranuity expense

Impairment on financial instruments

On fi ial assets at d cost
Impairment loss allowances on loans

Imparrment Joss allowances on undrawn loan commitments

Depreciation, ization and i

Deprecution and amornisation cxpenscs
Deprecanon on night ro use assets

Oiher expenses

Bank charges

Business promonon expenses

Audir fees

Legal & professional expenses
Commumication expenses

Insurance expenses

Informanon technology support cost
Customer acquisiton cost

Elecmicity expenses

Prnnng and stanonery

Markenng & advernsement expenses
Office expense

Traveling expenses

Rent expense

Rates and raxes

Trammng and development

Corporate Socal Resporsibidity expense

Miscellaneous expenses

#Audit fees includes audi ion (

Statutory audht

Fax audit

Limuted review

Cernficanon charges

Total

*Tax auditors arc other than stansory auditors

g goods and service tax) comprises the following:

For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,479.44 94245
1,479.44 942.45
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
11,157.93 5,389.29
L3462 0540
128.60 93.18
51.96 25.89
12,373.11 6,016.76
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
520.63 36.49
19.96
546.59 36.49
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
836.56 495.16
168.58 168.89
1,005.14 664.05
For the period ended For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R 63.57
204.90 169.62
45,50 3793
594.82 555.48
261.69 166.66
29.47
17311
167.35
87.06
545.28
463.66
286.87
441.95
41354
41.24
3L78
5
13.59 18.60
3,998.93 2,716.01
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2875 25.00
343 343
6.0 6.00
7.32 3.50
45.50 37.93
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16(e) Debt securities (Contd.)
S.No ISIN Dateof Dateof Nominal Total Rate of  Asat As at As at As at Secured / Fixed/
allotment redemptio value per number of interest 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March Unsecured Floating
n debenture debenture p.a. 2024 2024 2023 2023
(INR) s # (Coupon  (Face Amount  (Face Amount
rate) Value) Value)
Amount Amount

1 INEOE2307013 25-Aug-20 25-Aug-23 1,000,000.00 50 13.90% 500 498.71 Secured Frxed

2 INEOE2307021 6-Jan-21  6-Jan-24 100,000.00 375 13.50% 375 371.07 [ixed
3 INEOE2307054 4-May-21 4 May-26 1,000,000.00 145 11.68% LAS0.00 144264 1,450.00 1439.21 Floatmg
4 INEOE2307062 6-May-21  6-May-26 1000 600.00 220 11.72% 220000 217555 220000 216427 Floatmg

5 INEOE2307088 6-Jul-21  15-Jul-24 1,000,000.00 215 TL76%  2,150.00  2,14418 215000 2,124.19 Fixed

6 INEOE2307096 26-Jul-21  29-8ep-23 L000,000.00 235 11.33% 2346.67 233945 Fixed

7 INEOE2307179 27-Oct-21 30-Sep-26 1,000,000.00 300 1500°% 300000 297553 300000 296795 Fixed

8 INFOE2307112 16-Nov-21  13-Nov-27 1,000,000.00 300 10L06% 300000 296945 300000 2,954.26 Faxed

9 INEOE2307120 27-Jan-22 5-Jul-25 10,000.00 42,000 11.76% 420000 413589 20000 4,080.37 Fixed
10 INEOE2307138 21-jul-22 21-jul-25 LOG0,000.00 310 12.24% 3,100,00 3,097.17 3,100.00 3,086.86 Floatmg,
11 INEOE2307146 29-Jul-22 29-Jan-26 1.0GO,000.00 310 12.29% 3,100.00 3.095.60 3,100.00 3,086.44 Sccured Foatng

12 INEDE2307153 28-Dec-22 4-Dec-26 100 5786200 13.25% 578620 5371024  5786.20  5634.31 Secured Fixed

13 INEOE2307161 23-Dec-22  23-Dec-27 100,000.00 2454 11.50% 2.454.00 243734 245400 2427.12 Secured Fixed

14 INEOE2307195 31-Jan-24 31-Jan-27 100,000,000 6,00 11.75% 6,000.00 5812.60 Secured Iixed

15 INEOE2307187 7Jul-23 TJul-26 50,000.00 4,902 10.90% 245100 244153 Secured Fixed

Total 38,891.20 38437.71 33,661.87 33,174.21
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35 Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the period ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2023 are

For the year
Statement of profit and loss ended For the vear ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 675.06 30321
Tax expense pertaining to previous year - 3976
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,089 70 24959
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1.764.76 592.56
For the year
Other comprehensive income ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 155 0.14
Income tax expense reported in the Other Comprehensive income L.55 0.14
Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit iplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the period ended 31 March 2024
For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accounting profit before tax 6352.76 2.198.95
Tax at statutory Income tax rate of @ 25,17% 1.598.86 553.43
Others 16590 (0.63)
Tax expense pertaining to previous year - 3976
Tax at effective income iax rate 1,764.76 592.56
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,764.76 592.56
Current tax assets/(liabilities) (net)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax assets (net) = =
Current tax liabilities (net) 3615 11.24
(36.15) (11.24)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense
As at As at

Deferred tax asseis

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Lease liabilities net of Right of use assets 3417 3027
Provision for employee benefits 53.51 19.10
Expected credit loss (ECL) 208.17 11097
EIR on processing fees of loans 31956 177.94
Property, plant and equipment 142.48 82.18
Others 237 229
Derivative financial instruments_Loan Liability 4408
805.24 422,75

Deferred tax liabilities
EIS receivable 1290.76 290 64
Un-amortised processing fees on Customer Acquisition cost 66514
Unamortised loan origination costs 357.62

2,313.52
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities), net recognised in the balance sheet (1.508.28) (462.02)
Deferred tax credit/(expense) (1,091,25) (249.73)
Deferred tax credit/(expense) recorded in statement of profit and loss 1,089.70 (249 59)
Deferred 1ax credit/(expense) recorded in other comprehensive income 155 (0.14)

1.091.25 (249.73)

w Delhi
NCR
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36

37

a)

b)

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the vear. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Following reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:

Basic

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS (in absolute numbers)
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS (in lakhs)

Basic earning per share (in absolute INR)

Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS (in absolute numbers)
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS (in lakhs)

Diluted earning per share (in absolute INR)

Reconciliation of profit for calculation of diluted EPS

Net profit for calculation of basic EPS (INR in lakhs)

Add: Impact of dilution of compulsory convertible preference shares
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS (INR in lakhs)

Reconciliation of Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS

Add; Impact of dilution of compulsory convertible preference shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS
Nominal/ Face value of equity shares (in INR)

Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

17,181,743 14,096,397
4,588 1,606
26.70 11.40
39,930,333 33,852,186
4,588 1,606
11.49 4.78
For the year

ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
4.588.00 1,606.39
4,588.00 1,606.39
17,181,743 14,096,397
22,748,591 19,755,789
39,930,334 33,852,186
10.00 10.00

The Company provide provident fund and employee's state insurance scheme for eligible employees as per applicable regulations where in both employee and the Company make monthly contribution at a
specified percentage of the eligible employee's salary The expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year towards defined contribution plan is INR 1034 62 lakhs (31 March 2023

INR 505 40 lakhs)

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous services of 5 vears are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable
on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service, subject to maximum limit of INR
20 lakh. The present value of the unfunded defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuanial valuations being carried out

at each reporting date

Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost
Net Interest cost
Expenses recognised

Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Actuarial (Gains) on obligation for the year
Due to Change in financial assumptions
Due to change in demographic assumption
Due to experience adjustments

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Net (Income) for the year recognized in OC1

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

128.30 6994
5.10 4.86
123.20 65.08

For the year
ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

48 67 27.35
329 1.54
51.96 28.89

For the year
ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

114 (2.69)
360 1.22
1.42 0.90
6.16 (0.57)
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c)

The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as follows:

For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate 7.20% T.35%
Salary escalation rate 3.00% 3.00%
Withdrawal rate 15.00% 15.00%

Balance sheet reconciliation

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening net liability 65.08 3676
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 51.96 28.89
Expenses recognized in OCI 6.16 (0.57)
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 123.20 65.08

Cash Flow Projection
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund

For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

Year | cashflow 8.51 4.84
Year 2 cashflow 9.54 556
Year 3 cashflow 1146 6.03
Year 4 cashflow 2047 739
Year 5 cashflow 12.74 1388
Year 6 1o year 10 Cashflow 65.59 3224

Sensitivity analysis

For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Discount rate sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 124,57 6798
Decrease by 0.5% 132.23 71.99
Salary growth rate sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 13201 T1.75
Decrease by 0.5% 124.54 68.26
Withdrawal rate (W.R.) sensitivity

WR X 110% 126.22 68 90
WR X90% 130.12 70.84

other long term employee benefit plan

Other long term employee benefit plan comprises compensated absences. The Company operates comp d absences plan (earned leaves),where in every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to
15 days salary for every completed year of service which is subject to maximum of 30 days accumulation of leaves The same is payable during early retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by
employee and upen death of employee. The salary for calculation of earned leave are last drawn basic salary. The present value of the unfunded defined benefit obligation and the related current service
cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date

Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 7558 -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 75.58 £
Exp recognized in the S of Profit and Loss
For the year
ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 7558 -
Net Interest cost
Expenses recognised 75.58 -

Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCT)

For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Actuarial (Gains) on obligation for the year
Due to Change in financial assumptions -
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments - -
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income - -

Net (Income) for the yvear recognized in OC1 - -
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The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as follows:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Withdrawal rate

Balance sheet reconciliation

Opening net liability

Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Expenses recognized in OCI

Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Projection
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund

Projected henefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

Year | cashflow
Year 2 cashflow
Year 3 cashflow
Year 4 cashflow
Year 3 cashflow
Year 6 to year 10 Cashflow

Sensitivity analysis

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Discount rate semsitivity

Increase by 0.5%

Decrease by 0.5%

Salary growth rate sensitivity

Increase by 0 5%

Decrease by 0.5%

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) sensitivity

WR. X 110%

WR X %0%

38 Segment information

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

7.20% =
3.00% -
15.00%
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

75.58

75.58

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

18.55
14 55
1208
13.01
7.53
2249

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

74.29
76.92

76.97
74.23

74.69
76.58

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by Company's Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The Company provides Housing loans and Non-housing loans and the entire services are
governed by same set of risk and returns. Hence, the Company bas been considered to have only one primary reporting segment. The entire income of the Company is generated from customers which are
domiciled in India_ Hence, there is only one geographical segment. The said treatment is in compliance with the guiding principle as envisaged by Indian Accounting Standard 108, ‘Operating Segments’ as

presenibed under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder

39 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Debt securities
Borrowings other than debt securities
Total

Debt securities
Borrowings other than debt securities
Tetal

*Represents non cash adjustment on account of amortization of processing fees

As at " As at
| Aprzezy  how (o) Oty 31 March 2024
3317421 5,025 81 237.70 38,437 72
57.842.26 34,084.50 810.04 92,736.81
91,016.47 39,110.31 1.047.75 131,174.53
As al 5 - As at
1 April 2022 Cashflow (net) iy 31 March 2023
21.206.79 11,769.47 19795 33,17421
46,801 54 10,386.93 653.80 57,842.26
8.008.33 22.156.40 85175 91,016.47
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40  Contingent liabilities and commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

a)

b)

Contingent liabilities
There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
The Company does not have any pending litigations which have a material adverse effect on iis fi 1al of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023

Additionally, the Company is not involved in any disputes, lawsuits and claims, including commercial matters The Company believes that there are no such pending matters that are expected 1o have any
material adverse effect on its financial statements in any given accounting period

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, vide their ruling dated 28 February 2019, set out the principles based on which certain allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic
wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has been filed by a third party and is pending before the Supreme Court for
disposal

In view of the management. pending decision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO,the management has a view that the applicability of the decisions is prospective. Further. the
impact for the past period, if any, is not practically ascertainable in view of various interpretation issues The Company will continue to assess any further developments in this matter for the implications
on financial statements, if any

Commitments

Undisbursed amount of sanctioned loans

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

19,593 .63

8,494.63

41

a)

b)

)

Related party disclosures
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below

Name of the related parties and related party relationship

Individuals with control over the enterprise
Key Management Personnel

Ms. Kaajal Ajjaz llom

Mr Ramandeep Gill

Ms. Divyani Chand

Mr. Amit Arora

Ms. Kaajal Aijaz IImi (Managing Director and CEO)

Managing Director and Chief Executive officer
Chief Financial Officer (Till 22 October 2022)
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer (Till 15 March 2024)

Directors

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi
Ms. Divya Abhishek
Transactions during the year:

Independent Director
Independent Director

For the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel®
Ms. Kaajal Ajjaz Timi 28528 224.78
Mr. Ramandeep Gill - 4610
Ms. Divyani Chand 40.53 2228
Mr. Amit Arora B7.63 18 34

Other compensation lo Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Hmi 34374

Sitting fees
Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi 7.74 632
Ms. Divya Abhishek 1.08 -

Salary advance given during the year
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Ilmi - -
Mr. Ramandeep Gill J -
Ms. Divyani Chand

Salary advance recovered during the year
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz [Imi (64.50) (43.00)
Mr. Ramandeep Gill - (59.59)
Ms Divyani Chand (343) -

Personal Guarantee given during the vear
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz llmi 91,299.50 58,640 20

Outstanding balances as at year end:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loan - Staff loans

Ms. Kaajal Aijaz lmi 126.34 155.01
Ms. Divyani Chand 1482 -

P 1 g given ( ding)
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Iimi 192,509.70 135.580.20

*The amount excludes provision made for gratuity and leave encashment which are provided for a group of employees on overall basis

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. However, the Company has granted the advances in the nature of loan to the Promoter and
KMPs that are repayable as per specified terms of repayment, details of which are here under
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43

A)

i)
iii)
)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Amount of loan  Percentage to the  Amount of loan Percentage to the
or advance in the  total loans and  or advance in the total loans and

Tygeiof borrower nature of loan advances in the nature of loan advances in the
ountstanding® nature of loans outstanding® nature of loans
Promoters 126,34 0.08% 155.01 0.15%
Directors - x - -
KMPs 14 82 001% - 0.00%
Related parties - - - -

*Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding represents gross amount given to the borrower
Financial instruments

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital capital includes issued equily capital, share premium and all other equily reserves attributable 1o the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debt divided by net owned funds. The Company's policy is 1o keep the gearing ratio at reasonable level of 5-6 times in imminent year while the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (the "RBI Master Directions") currently permits HECs ta borrow up to 12 times of their net owned funds ("NOF"). The Company includes
within debt. its all interest bearing loans and borrowings

Debt to Net worth ratio is as under:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Debts 131.174.53 91,016 47
Net Worth* 32,840.81 26,609 88
Debt to net owned funds (in times) 3.99 3.42

* Net worth has been calculated as per RBI directions (Net Owned Funds).
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital amongst other things. aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

Financial Risk management

Introduction and risk profile

Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and
other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsibilities The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks. The Company also has a system of internal
controls to reduce the residual risk in each of these categories and the effectiveness of these controls is assessed periodically.

Risk management structure and Company's risk profile

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Risk Management Committee (RMC') has the
overall responsibility for the develop of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits The RMC is also responsible for managing risk decisions, implementing and
maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained and monitoring risk levels and reports to the Board.

The Company is also responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Company. including monitoring the actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and the
assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. The Company's treasury team is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily
responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counter parties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk in the Company is managed through a framework
that sets out policies and procedures covering the measurement and management of credit risk. There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction originators in the business function and approvers

in the credit risk function. Board approved credit policies and procedures mitigate the Company's prime risk which is the default risk. There is a robust Credit Risk Management set-up in the Company at
various levels

There are credit teams to ensure implementation of various policies and processes through random « visits and training of branch staff on application errors, liaison with other
institutions to obtain necessary information/loan closure documents, as the case may be, and highlight early warning Signals and industry developments enabling pro-active field risk management

The credit sanction is done through a delegation matrix where credit sanctioning powers are defined for respective levels.

Portfolio analysis and reporting is used to identify and manage credit quality and concentration risks.

Credit risk monitoring for the Company is broadly done at two levels: account level and portfolio level Account monitoring aims to identify weak accounts at an incipient stage to facilitate corrective
action. Portfolio monitoring aims towards managing risk concentration in the portfolio as well as identifying stress in certain occupations, markets and states
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Analysis of risk concentration
The Company's concentrations of risk are managed based on Loan to Value (LTV) ion, employ type and g phical spread The following tables stratify credit exposures from housing and
other loans to customers by these metrics. LTV is calculated as the ratio of gross amount of the loan (including interest accrued on loans and excluding unamortised balance of processing fees) or the
amount committed for loan commitments - to the value of the collateral. The value of the collateral for housing and other loans is based on collateral value at origination

Loans to Customers:
As at 31 March 2024

LTV Bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

<=40 139.456.11 11,633.79 1.426.10 152,519.00
40-60 4466 47 524 62 10205 5,093 14
60-70 47 84 1336 485 6605
70-80 1584 - - 1584
=80 - - - -
Total 143,986.26 12,171.77 1,536.00 157,694.03
Sector/ Employment Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Salaried 943053 1.211.76 22032 10,862.61
Self Employed 134,555.74 10,960.00 1,315.68 146,831 42
Total 143,986.27 12,171.76 1,536.00 157,694.03
Geographical concentration Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

North 106,261.20 8.957.57 1,191.32 116.410.09
South 2831989 2,694 21 305.29 31,319.39
East -
West 9.405.16 519.99 39.40 9,064.55
Total 143,986.25 12,17L77 1,536.01 157,694.03

As at 31 March 2023

LTV Bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

==40 88101 89 R.691.61 54529 97,338.79
40-60 327228 591.06 2645 3,880.79
60-70 4314 1433 251 59.98
70-80 719 148 867
=80 - - - -
Total 91.424.50 9.298.49 574.24 101,297.23
Sector/ Employment Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Salaried 17.734.23 2,895.09 183.45 20.812.77
Self Employed 73,690.27 6,403.39 390 80 80,484 46
Total 91.424.50 9.298.48 §74.25 101,297.23
Geographical concentration Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

North 61,449 46 8,080.88 54997 70,080.31
South 22,069.65 946.36 19.65 23,035.65
East 39.68 - - 39.68
West 7.865.71 271.25 463 8.141:59
Total 91,424.50 9,298.49 574.24 101,297.23

B) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash reguirements. The unavailability of adequate amount of funds at optimum cost and co-terminus tenure to repay
the financial liabilities and further growth of business may resuit in Asset Liability M {ALM) mi h caused by a difference in the maturity profile of Company assets and liabilities. This risk
may arise from the unexpected increase in the cost of funding an asset portfolio at the appropriate maturity and the risk of being unable 10 liquidate a position in a timely manner and at a reasonable price
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and undrawn credit facilities. by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cashflow of the Company's financial assets and liabilities:

As at 31 March 2024 < 1 year 1-3 vear 3-5 year >5 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 532059 5.320.59
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,301 .00 604.70 1,045 00 74997 3.700.67
Loans 14761 15 3761091 41,898 49 62.690 68 156,970.23
Investments 9.457.18 246.41 9,703.59
Other financial assets 4,409 30 2,490.01 927.25 146.17 7.972.73
Total 35,249.22 40,705.62 44,117.15 63.595.82 183.667.81

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 33753 337.53
Debt securities 6,476.72 31,960.44 0.54 = 38,437.71
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 27.050.75 44,318 45 14,902.79 6.464 83 92,736.82
Derivative financial mstruments = 14338 34064 22,01 200.03
Lease liabilities 177.39 368.80 279.58 - 825.77
Other financial liabilities 11,907.17 - - - 11,907.17

Total 45,949.56 76,791.07 15.217.55 6.486.84 144.445.03
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)

As at 31 March 2023 <1 year 1-3 year 3-5 year >5 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1432856 - - - 14,328.56
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 273246 69099 196.10 1,870.06 5,489.62
Loans 9,447 84 25.026.16 20.227.31 37.392.44 101,093.76
Investmenis 980 - 796 = 89.40
Other financial assets 2,085.98 567.64 22383 169.01 3.046.45
Total 28,604.64 26,284.79 29,726.85 39,431.51 124,047.79

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 40982 - - - 409.82
Debt securities 3,060.95 1317113 16,941 89 024 33.174.21
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 21,658.30 25.212.66 8.496.00 2,475.30 57.842.26
Lease liabilities 124 41 230.15 189 84 1925 563.65
Other financial liabilities 5,524.31 - - - 5,524.31
Total 30,777.79 38.613.94 25,627.73 2,494.79 97,514.25
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market price. Market price comprises of three types of risks: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

i) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed 1o interest rate risk, primarily since it lends 1o customers at rates and for maturity periods that may differ from funding sources, Interest rates are highly sensitive 1o many factors
beyond control, including the monetary policies of Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India. domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other
factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company seek 1o optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans. The Company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified
resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management
Committee supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks

The Company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile to the Company's interest bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Variable rate instruments
Borrowings 76.872.54 43,605 81

Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable instruments:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate of borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings as follows

Impact on statement of profit and loss for the period Tor the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 2023

Increase by 50 basis points (384.36) (218.03)

Decrease by 50 basis points 38436 218.03

ii) Currency risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have any
foreign currency exposure as 31 March 2023 and therefore there is no foreign currency risk on the future cashflows of the Company. In FY 2024 there was foreign currney risk for the ECB raised and
same is mitigate throgh hedging of transaction. Further, expenditure incurred in foreign currency during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is as given below:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was based on the following amounts as at the reporting dates between USD and INR

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payable/receivables - -
External commercial borrowings 14,131.19 -
Sensitivity

As at As at
Impact on statement of profit and loss for the period 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
+5% change in currency exchange rates 706.56 -
-5% change in currency exchange rates - 706.56 -

Expenditure in foreign currency

For the year For the year ended

ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
Legal and professional charges 62.84 159.91
Interest on External commercial borrowing 1.015.23 =
Total 1,078.07 159.91

e 0
N2 ACC:
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HL  Fair value hierarchy

43

al)

b)

c)

dy

e)

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair
value measurements as a whole

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement 1s not based on observable market data.

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrving amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments other than those with carrying amounts that are approximates of fair value. This
table does not include the fair values of non-fi ial assets and non-fi ial liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 9,703 .59 - - 9,703.59 9,703.59 - -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents - - 532059 5.320.59 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 3,700.67 3,700.67 - 3 -
Loans - - 156,970.23 156,970.23 = - =
Other financial assets - - 7,972.73 7,972.73 - - -
9,703.59 = 173,964.23 183,667.82 9,703.59 - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Debt securities - - 3843771 38,437.71 - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) = 14,131.19 78,605.63 92,736.82 - - -
Derivative financial instruments. 200.03
Trade payables - - 337.53 337.53 - = -
Lease liabilities - - 825.77 825.77 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 11.907.17 11,907.17 - & &
- = 130,313.84 144,245.00 - - -
As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Amoeunt Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 89.40 - - 89.40 89.40 - -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents - - 14,328 56 14,328.56 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 548962 5,489.62 - - -
Loans - - 101,093.76 101,093.76 - - -
Other tinancial assets - - 3,046.45 3.046.45 - - =
$9.40 - 123,958.39 124,047.79 89.40 - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Debt securities - - 33,174.21 33,174.21 - = -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 57.842.26 57.842.26 - - B
Trade payables - - 409 82 409.82 - - .
Lease liabilities - - 563.65 563.65 - - -
Other financial habihities - - 5,524.31 5,524.31 - - =
- - 97.514.25 97.514.25 - - -

There have been no transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments measured at [air value
Investments - The fair value is determined using quoted prices from active markets at the measurement date for investments at fair value through profit and loss

Valuati hodologies of financial instr not measured at fair value

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

Loans - The fair value of fixed rate loans are determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market interest rates charged to similar categories of new loans. The fair value
of floating rate loans are deemed to be equivalent o the carrying value

Debt securities and borrowings - The fair value of fixed rate borrowings are determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market interest rates charged to similar new
loans. The fair value of floating rate borrowings are deemed to be equivalent 1o the carrying value.

Lease liabilities - The fair value of lease liabilities is determined by discounting expected contractual lease payments to be made over the lease term using incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

8 v di e required as per Schedule H1 Division III of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not entered any transactions with companies that were struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

The Company does not have any investment in any subsidiary company. Therefore, there is no requi to comply with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of Companies
Act, 2013 read with Comparies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

There was no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The Company does not have any transactions which were not recorded in the books of account, but offered as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Also, there is
no previously unrecorded income and related assets which need to be recorded in the books of account during the year

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
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f) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder,
as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

g) The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the
vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

h) The Company has not revalued any property plant and equipment (including - Right of Use assets) and Intangible assets during the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023

i) As a part of normal lending business, the company grants loans and advances on the basis of security/guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-borrower. These transactions are conducted after exercising
proper due diligence. Other than the transactions described above,
- No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company ta or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall lend or invest in a party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficianies):

- No funds have been received by the Company from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

1) Ratios
I Ratios as per Schedule I11 requirements
Ratio Numerator De i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Yeage Variance R for variance (if above 25%)
Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 33254 94 112,776 84 29 49% 40 58% -11.09% Not applicable
Tier | CRAR 3284081 112,776 84 29.12% 40 11% -10.99% Not applicable
Tier 11 CRAR 414.13 112,776.84 0.37% 0.47% -0.10% Not applicable
Liquidity Coverage Ratio® NA* NA* NA* NA* NA* NA*

* The Company is not required to comply with the guidelines on Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) in line with Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Il Disclosures of Financial Ratios for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
Pursuant to Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), key financial ratios are as follows:

Key Financial Ratios 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Debt Equity Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio = (Borrowing + Debt Securities)/ (Equity share capital + Other equity) 326 317
B. Debt Service Coverage Ratio Not Applicable (beinga HF.C ) Not Applicable (heing a HF C )
C  Interest Service Coverage Ratio Not Applicable (being a HF.C ) Not Appilicable (being a HF C )
D Outstanding Redeemable Preference Shares (quantity and value) Not Applicable Not Applicable
E  Capital Redemption Reserve Not Applicable Not Applicable
¥ Debenture Redemption Reserve Not Applicable (beinga HF C ) Not Applicable (being a HF C.)
G Net Worth (INR in lakhs) 40255 67 28.747.17
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Net Profit After Tax (INR in lakhs)
Earnings Per Share (Basic)

Earnings Per Share (Diluted)

Current Ratio

Long Term Debt To Working Capital
Bad Debts To Account Receivable Ratio
Current Liability Ratio

Total Debts To Total Assets

Debtors Tumover Ratio

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Operating Margin (%)

Net Profit Margin (%)

Net Profit Margin (%) ~ Profir afier tax  Total Reverue
Sector Specific Ratio

(a) GNPA %

(b) NNPA %

(c) Capital Adequacy Ratio % - Total

Details of CSR expenditure:
Particulars

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the vear
b) Amount spent during the year
1) On purposes of construction/acquisition of any asset
i) On purposes other than (i) above
- Contribution to various Trust/NGOs/Societies/ Agencies and utilisation thereon
- Expenditure towards COVID testing, Rapid test kit, masks, PPE kits, RTPCR, Vaccination
©) The amount of shortfall at the end of the year
d) The total of previous year's shortfall amounts
Total amount spent during the year

Additional disclosures required by Reserve Bank of India

4588.00
26.70
1149
Not Applicable (being a HF.C)
Not Applicable (beinga HF.C.)
Not Applicable (being a HF.C )
Not Applicable (being a HF C )
0,70
Not Applicable (being a HF C.)
Not Applicable (being a HF C)
11.01%

11.01%
097%

0.54%
29.49%

1.606.39
11.40
475
Not Applicable (being a HF.C )
Not Applicable (being a HF C.)
Not Applicable (being a 1T C )
Not Applicable (being a HLF C )
072
Not Applicable (being a HF C.)
Not Applicable (being a HF C )
16 88%

999%
0.56%

0.32%

40 58%

For theyear For the year ended

ended
31 March 2023
March 2024 A
2705 1778
27.05 17.78
27.05 35.56

The disclosures as required in terms of Annex 1V of the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated 17 February 2021 issued

by the Reserve Bank of India, as amended, are as follows

Summary of Significant accounting policies - Refer note 3

Capital

Capital to Risk Asset Ratio
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%)
CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 Capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Reserve Fund uw/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

29.49% 40.58%
29 12% 40 11%
037% 0.47%

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year
Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank ('NHB') Act, 1987

Amount of special reserve under section 36(1 )(viii) of Income tax Act, 1961, taken into account for the purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the

NHB Act, 1987

682.16 360.88

Total

682.16 360.88

Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year
Add:
Amount transferred under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Amount of special reserve under section 36(1)(viii) of Income tax Act, 1961, taken into account for the purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the

NHB Act. 1987
Less:
Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve w/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Amount withdrawn from the special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken into account for the purpose of

provision w's 29C of the NHB Act. 1987

917.60 32128

Total

917.60 321.28

Balance at the end of the year
Statutory reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Amount of special reserve under section 36( 1)(viii) of Income tax Act, 1961, taken into account for the purposes of statutory reserve under Section 29C of the

NHB Act. 1987

1,599.76 682.16

Total

1,599.76 682.16

Investments

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Value of investments
Graoss value of investmenis
(&) In India
(b) Outside India

Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In india
(b) Outside India

9,703 59 89,40
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Net value of investments
(a) In India 9.703.59 89.40
(b) Outside India - =

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening Balance - -

Add: Provision made during the year = -
Less: Write offfwritten back of excess provisions during the year = =
Closing Balance - -

45.5 Derivative
1) Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)/ Interest Rate Swap
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The notional principal of swap agreements 14.131.19 -
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements - -
Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps - =
Concentration of credit fisk arising from the swaps$ = =
The fair value of the swap book @ - -

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps should also be disclosed

$ Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies

@ 1f the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amount that the HFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the
balance sheet date

2) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument wise) 14.131.19 -
(a) - -
(b) = =
() - =
Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31 March 2023 (instrument wise) - -
(a) = =
(b) = -
{c) - -
Notienal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives ontstanding and not “highly effective”™ (instrument wise) 14,131.19 -
(a) - =
(b) = =
(<) - -
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective”™ (instrument wise) 14,331,22 -
(2) - -
(b) 5 =
(c) - =

3) Risk Exposure in Derivatives
i) Qualitative Disclosure - The Company has not entered into any derivative contract during the year
ii) Quantitative Disclosure

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Currency Interest rate Currency Interest raie
Derivatives derivatives Derivatives derivatives
Denvatives (Notional Principal Amount) 14,131.19 - - -

Marked to Market Positions = < = =
(a) Assets (+) - - - -
(b) Liability (-) 20003 - - -

Credit Exposure -

Unhedged Exposures . o - .
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45.6 Asset Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

Liabilities [ Assets
Deposits Borrowings erk_ﬂ Fore.ign'r.u_rr:ncy Advances favestmania Foreign currency

31 March 2024 from banks Borrowings liabilities Assets

1 day to 7 days - 2298 376.86 - - 945718 -
8 1o 14 days - - 239.05 (1.39) 1.074 46 = =
15 days to 30/31 days - 760.01 1,34932 = = - -
Over | month upto 2 months - 784 51 1,500.75 (1.35) 1,128.15 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 months - 81068 1,630.03 (1.40) 1.149.11 = -
Over 3 months upto 6 months - 2,504.12 9,706.13 (4.15) 3.571.63 - -
Over 6 months upto 1 vear - 4,298 52 9.561.01 (8.20) 7.715.49 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - 11,790.09 57,628.91 6,859.89 37.457.64 - -
Over 3 to 5 years - 4,703.29 7.081.75 3.118.29 41,818.45 246.41 -
Over 5 years - 1,024.67 1,270.67 4,169 50 62,690.04 - =
Total - 26,698.87 90,344.47 14,131.19 156,604.97 9,703.59 -

Liabilities [ Assets
3 Borrowings Market Foreign currency Foreign currency

31 March 2023 Deposits from baxks Botrewing. linbilities Advances Investments Assals

1 day to 7 days - 24575 22232 - - = -
8 to 14 days - 832 27218 - 69219 - -
15 days to 30/31 days - 599.76 681 83 - 6.08 9.80 -
Over 1 month upto 2 months - 50197 898 09 = 725.99 - -
Over 2 months upto 3 months - 489.95 1075.69 - 739.82 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months - 213741 524572 - 2,304.03 - -
Over 6 months upto 1 year - 3897.01 844325 - 497973 = =
Over | year to 3 years - 8203 89 3017990 - 25,026.16 - -
Over 3 to 5 years - 409317 21344 71 - 29,227 31 79.60 -
Over 5 years - 244] .84 33.70 - 37.392.45 - -
Total - 22.619.08 68,397.39 - 101.093.76 89.40 -

Note:
1. Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the estimates and assumptions used by the Company

2 The Company does not have any deposits, foreign currency liabilities and foreign currency assets as at 31 March 2024. During the financial year 2023-24 company has taken external commercial borrowi

45.7 Exposure
A.  Exp Real Estate Sector
Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by morigages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented 157.694.04 101,297.24

ii) Commercial Real estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises. multi-family residential - -
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.} Exposure shall
also include non-fund based limits

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
(a) Residential - -
(b) Commercial Real Estate = E

Indirect Exposure
Fund based and fund based on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Hoeusing Finance Companies (HFCs) - <

Total exposure to Real Estate Sector 157,694.04 101,297.24

8. Exposure to Capital Market
Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Direct mvestment i equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively - -
invested in corporate debt

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including I[POs / ESOPs), convertible - -
bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oniented mutual funds

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oniented mutual funds are taken as primary = -
security

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity t -
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does
not fully cover the advances

Secured and unsecured advances 1o stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers - =
Loans sanctioned 1o corporates againsi the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to
the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues = s

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds/Alternate Investment Funds (both registered and unregistered) - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market = =

C. Details of financing of parent company products
The Company docs not have any parent company. Hence, disclosure with respect (0 details of financing of paren company products is not applicable to the Company.
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D.

45.8

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company’s credit exposure (whether in term of sanctioned amount or entire amount outstanding, whichever is higher) to single borrowers
and group of borrowers were within the limit prescribed by National Housing Bank for Housing Finance Companies.

Unsecured Advances
The Company has not financed any projects wherein intangible collateral such as rights. licenses, authority etc. have been taken as a security during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Exp ¢ to group Comyp gaged in real estate
Deseription 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i Amount % of owned fund Amount % of owned fund
Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business - - - -
Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business - - - -
Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and Relatives of Directors
P 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Description
Amount Amount
Directors and their relatives Advance: Advance:
Given during the year: Nil Given during the year: Nil
Repaid during the year:64.50 Repaid during the year:43.00

/S balance as on 31.03.24 : 126.34 /S balance as on 31,03.23 : 155.01

Entities associated with directors and their relatives

Advance: Advance:
Given during the year: 122.00 Given during the year: 60.00
Repaid during the year:47.80 Repaid during the year:1.42

/S balance as on 31.03.24:71.44 O/S balance as on 31.03.23:42.27
Senior Officers and their relatives

Miscellaneous
Registration obtained from other fi ial sector regul: s
There are no registrations obtained from other financial sector regulators

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB/ RBI and other regulators
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there has been no penalty imposed by National Housing Bank and there has been no adverse comments in writing from National Housing Bank
on regulatory compliances, which require a specific communication by the Company to the public

Related Party Transactions
Refer note 41 for all material transactions with related parties

Group Structure
The Company does not have any parent company or any subsidiary, so group structure is not applicable

Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and Migration of rating during the year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nature of securities Rating Agency Rating Rating Agency Rating
Bank borrowing and Term loan Acuite credit rating  ACUITE BBB +/  Acuite credit rating ACUITE BBB/
research Outlook: Stable research Qutlook: Stable
CRISIL credit BBB +/ Outlook
rating Stable
Non Convertible Debentures ICRA credit rating  BBB +/ Outlook: ICRA credit rating  BBB/ Outlook: Stable
Stable
Acuite credit rating  ACUITE BBB +/
research Outlook: Stable

There has been no migration of rating during the current vear and previous year

Remuneration of directors
Remuneration paid to directors is reflected in Note 41 “Related Party Transactions™. There is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors with the company or its directors,
senior g or group

P

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
The Company does not have any prior period item/ change in accounting policy during the current vear other than those disclosed in the financial statements

Revenue Recognition
There has been no instances where revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

C lidated Fi LG (CFS)
The Company does not have any parent or subsidiary, so consolidation of fi
There is no modified opinion by Auditor

is not app

to the Company
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All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated
45.9 Additional disclosures

A,

iii)

iv

Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expendi in Profit and Loss Account 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for depreciation on investment - }
Provision towards NPA and doubtful assets 424 00 28397

Provision towards undrawn commitment 19.96 -
Provision made towards Income Tax 675.06 303.21
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc ) 10242 311.85
Other provisions and contingencies
Provision for Gratuty 51.96 28.89
Provision for Compensated Advances 75.58 1082

Break up of Loans & Advances & Provisions thereon Housing Noa-Housisg

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 * 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 »

Standard assets

a) Total outstanding amount 111,977.79 62.544.24 44,180.24 38.178.74

b} Provision made 298 32 204 34 115.80 107.51
Sub-Standard assets

a) Total outstanding amount 591.17 320.66 516.95 253.59

b) Provision made 278.12 146.49 208.18 107.48
Doubtful assets-1

a) Total outstanding amount 180.70 8147 109.11 108.35

b} Provision made 8197 40.10 46.90 48.60
Doubtful assets-11

a) Total outstanding amount 63.21 - 74.86 -

b} Provision made 30.54 - 3225 =

Doubtful assets-111
a) Total outstanding amount - - - =
b) Provision made = - =

Loss assets
a) Total outstanding amount - - - -
b) Provision made S = & =

Total
a) Total outstanding amount 112,812.87 62,946.37 44.881.16 38,540.68
b) Provision made 688.96 390.93 403.13 263.59
Note:

*Total outstanding amount represents total of principal pertaining to loans without netting off. Further, the Company has excluded minimum retention requirement of direct assignment for the purpose of
this disclosure

Draw Down from Reserves
The Company has not drawn down any reserves during the current year and previous year

Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exp and NPAs

Concentration of Public Deposits

The Company is a non-deposit accepting housing finance company, hence it did not have any public deposits in current year and previous year. Therefore, disclosure with respect to concentration of public
deposits is not applicable on the Company

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors N/A N/A
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the deposit taking HFC NIA N/A

Concentration of Loans and Advances

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers* 104.01 108 34
Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the HFC 0.07% 0.11%

*Largest borrowers represent loan outstanding at reporting period

Concentration of all Exp es (including ofT bal: sheet exp es)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers® 104.11 10834
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 1o total exposure of the HFC on borrowers/ customers 0.07% 0.11%

*The above balances do not include interest accrued but not due on loans for computation of concentration of loans and advances and concentration of all exposures (including off-balance sheet
exposure)

Concentration of NPAs

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 5039 8273
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v) Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances
in that sector

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Housing Loans
Individuals
Builders/Project loans
Corporates
Others (specify)

Non-Housing Loans
Individuals
Builders/Project loans
Corporates
Others (specify)

D. Movement of NPA

0.52%

051%

0.66%

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
Movement of NPAs (Gross)

(a) Opening Balance 574.24 24288
(b) Additions during the year 1,104.53 393 50
(c) Reductions during the year (142.77) - 6214
(d) Closing Balance 1.536.00 574.24

Moavement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 320.11 14518
(b) Additions during the vear 609.03 204 68
{c) Reductions during the vear (7110 (29.74)
{d) Closing Balance 858.03 320.12

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening Balance 254.13 97.70
(b) Provisions made during the year 495 50 188 83
(¢) Write oft/ Write-back (71.66) (32 40)
(d) Closing Balance 677.97 25413

E. Overseas Assels
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Overseas assets - -
F.  OfT Balance sheet SPVS sponsored
The Company does not have any off Balance sheet SPVS sponsored which required to be consolidated as per accounting norms (previous year- Nil)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas

SPVs sponsored

G. Disclosure of complaints

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year
No. of Complaints received during the year
No. of complaints redressed during the year

24 17
24 17

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

46 Balance sheet disclosures as required under Annex 111 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2021 dated 17

February 2021 issued by the RBI, as updated.

Liabilities side

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding Overd di Overdue

A. Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon (before TDS) but not paid:

a) Debentures
Secured
Unsecured
b) Deferred credits
¢) Term loans
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
¢) Commercial Paper
f) Public Deposits
¢) Other Loans (Overdrafi facility)

34,069 87 =

39,583 64 -

79,378 91 - §7,795.23 =

- 172.68 -

B. Break-up of (A)(f} above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid):

a) In the form of Unsecured debentures

b) In the form of partly secured debentures i e debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security = =] -

) Other public deposits

Assets side

Amount outstanding as at
31 March 2023

Amount outstanding as at
31 March 2024

€. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (D) below]:

a) Secured
b) Unsecured

101,659.58
36235

157.694.03
36828
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Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024
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D.

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
a) Financial lease -
b) Operating lease =
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
a) Assets on hire -
b) Repossessed assets -
(iif) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
a) Loans where assets have been repossessed =
b) Loans other than (a) above -

Break-up of Investments
Current investments
1. Quoted
1} Shares
a) Equity 2
b) Preference -
i) Debentures and Bonds
i) Units of mutual funds 9.457.19
w) Government Securilies -
v) Others -
2. Unguoted
i) Shares
a) Equity s
b) Preference =
i) Debentures and Bonds =
i) Units of mutual funds =
iv) Government Securities -
v} Others =

Long-term investments
1. Quoted
i) Shares
a) Equity =
b) Preference -
ii) Debentures and Bonds -
iii) Units of mutual funds 246.40
iv) Government Securities -
v) Others =

2. Unquoted
i) Shares
a) Equity =
b) Preference -
ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds -
iv) Government Securities -
v) Others =

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (C) and (D) above:

Category Secured Unsecured Total Secured

Amount net of provisions as at 31 March 2024 Amount net of provisions as at 31 March 2023

Unsecured Total

. Related Parties
a) Subsidiaries . = = A
b) Companies in the same group s a
¢) Other related parties - 126.34 126,34
. Other than related parties 156,601 94 24193 156,843 88 102,225 41

4

155.01 155.01
207.34 102,432.75

Total 156.601.94 368.27 156,970.22 102,225.41

362.35 102,587.76

Investor group-wise classification of all i (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and ung d):

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Market Value / Book Value
Break up or fair (Net of
value or NAV Provisions)

Category

Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or NAV

Book Value
{Net of Provisions)

- Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries - -
b) Companies in the same group ] 2
¢) Other related parties - =
Other than related parties , -

[ad

Total = =
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H. Other Information

i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

Amount outstanding as at
31 March 2024

Amount outstanding as at
31 March 2023

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties 1,536.00 57424
ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties 858.03 32012
iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt = =

47 Details of Principal Business Criteria

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage of total assets towards housing finance 62.20% 50.71%
Percentage of total assets towards housing finance for individuals 62.20% 50.71%

Requirement as per Paragraph 4.1.17 of the Master Direction is given below:

Minimum percentage of total assets towards housing finance
Minimum percentage of total assets towards housing finance for individuals

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

31 March 2024

50% 55%
40% 45%

60%
30%

Note: “Para 5.3 of the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 prescribes for transitional phase for compliance with the
“Minimum percentage of total assets towards Housing Finance within the timelines permitted in the aforesaid Directions and the Company is presently underway submitting to the Reserve Bank, a Board
approved plan including a roadmap to fulfil the stated criteria and timeline for transition ™

Disclosure as required by Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies

Disclosure in terms of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated 17 February 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India
read with para 15A on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Public disclosure on liquidity risk in terms of Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework

A, Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1) Number of significant counterparties® 34 29
i) Amount 119,677 79,772.00
iii) Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits - =
1v) Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilites 81.44% 81.12%
*Significant counter parties is as defined in RBI circular RBI/2019-2020/88 DOR. NBFC(PD) CC No. 102/03 10.001/2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for
Non Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies
B. Top 10 Borrowings
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i) Total amount of top 10 borrowings 57.350.92 45.695.13
i) Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings 43.72% 49 42%
€. Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars % of Total Liabilities Ameount % of Total Liabilitit Amount
i} Non-convertible debentures 26.11% 3843771 32.85% 32.304.43
i) Term Loans 45 58% 67,108 31 47.85% 47,050.38
ii) External Commercial Borrowing 9.60% 14,131.19 - -
D. Stock Ratio
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i) Non convertible debentures (original matunity of less than one year) as a percentage of total public funds* - -
ii) Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total liabilities - =
iii) Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total assets - =
v} Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total public funds 36.04% 3521%
v} Other short term habilities as a percentage of total liabilities** 32.06% 32.59%
vi) Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total assets 25.16% 25.21%
**Total liabilities are excluding equity share capital and other equity
* Public funds is as defined in Master Direction on Non-Banking Financial Company Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016
Other short term liabilities are excluding commercial paper and short-term non convertible debentures
# No Commerical papers issued by the Company as of reporting date.
E. Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk management consists of asset liability management committee{ ALCO) which is the sub committee of Board of Directors. Meeting of this committee are held at periodic intervals while the

committee is responsible for oversight of specific risk relating to liquidity and interest rate sensitivity, the risk = ittee is responsible for comapny-wide nisk gement
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49 The disclosures as required by the Master Direction -Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs issued by RBI dated 29 September 2016.
There were Nil fraud reported during the year (31 March 2024: Nil)

50 Transfers of assets
Assignment deal:
The Company has sold some loans measured at amortised cost as per assignment deals during the year As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related Lo these assets were
transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the Company’s balance sheet. The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business
model. Based on the future business plan, the Company's business model remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows. The table below summarises the carrying amount of the
derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain on derecognition, per type of asset

Loans measured at amortized cost 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying amount of financial assets derecognized as a1 the year end 20,344 75 3,701.03
Carrying amount of financial assets derecognized during the year 19.268.39 2.009.57
Gain from derecognition 4,954 97 63220

Details of loans transferred/acquired during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 under the Master Direction - RBI (Transfer of Loan Exposure) Directions, 2021 dated 24
September 2021 are given below:

Details of loans not in default transferred/acquired through assi 3
(i) Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Transferred Transferred

Aggregate of loans transferred 19,268 39 2,009.57
Weighted average maturity (in years) 6.00 9.00
Weighted average holding period (in years) 200 200
Retention of beneficial economic interest by the originator 10% and 20% 10%
Tangible security coverage 100% 100%
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans NA NA

(ii) The Company has not acquired any loan not in default during the year ended 31 March 2024
(iii) The Company has not transferred or acquired any stressed loans during the vear ended 31 March 2024

(iv) The Company does not have any security receipts during the financial year ended 31 March 2024

(v) Disclosure under Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Direction, 2021 dated 24 September 2021.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of SPEs holding assets for securitisation assets originated by the originator - -
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs - -
Total amount of exposures retained by the onginator to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

(a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
Corporate Guarantee - -
(b) On balance sheet exposures - -
Investment in PTC = =
Amount of exposures 10 securitisation transactions other than MRR ® Cd

51 Disclosures required by the RBI circular no. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 on Impl ion of Indian Ac ing Standards dated 13 March 2020,

A comparison befween provision required under income recognition, asset classification and provisioning(IRACP) and impairment allowance as per IND AS 109 'Financial Instrument’.

Asset Gross carrying Loss Allowances Provisions Difference between
Asset classification as per RBI Norms S (Provisions) as Net Carrying - Ind AS 109
31 March 2024 classification as  amount as per required under Amsuteat required as per provisions and
per Ind AS 109 ind AS Ind ASI09 IRACP Norms TRACP norms
[ @) 3) ) (5Er3) (6) [
Performing Assets
Standard Stage | 143,986.27 209.05 14377722 42278 - 21373
Stage 2 12.171.76 20507 11.966.69 3224 172.83
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Sub Standard Stage 3 1.108.09 486.29 621.80 164.78 321.51
Doubtful Assets
Upto | year Stage 3 289 81 128 88 16093 7254 5634
1 to 3 years Stage 3 138 07 6279 7528 5394 885
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - ~
Subtotal-Doubiful 427.88 191.67 236.21 126.48 65.19
Loss Assets Stage 3 - - - - -
Loan Commitments Stage | S = s - -
Stage 2 - - - - =
Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub 1 of Loan ¢ i - - - - -
Stage 1 143.986.27 209.05 143,777.22 422.78 -213.73
Grand Total Stage 2 12,171.76 205.07 11,966.69 32.24 172.83
Stage 3 1,535.97 677.96 858.01 291.26 386.70

* The company has idered loans (including the mini retention requirement of direct

) for the p of this disclosures

P
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Loss Allowances Difference between

Asset classification as per RBI Norms .Aj“.‘ S-voes cavcying (Provisions) as Net Carrying PI“.DVISMI‘IS Ind AS 109
31 Mareh 2023 classification as  amount as per ulred ud A i required as per rovisions and
Ind AS 109 ind AS e e ong IRACP Norms "
per f Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
(U] 2) 3) “4) B3 ) ™
Performing Assets
Standard Stage | 91,424.49 185.56 91.238.93 281.96 (96.40)
Stage 2 9,298 .49 126,29 9,172.19 2793 9836
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Standard Stage 3 38443 165.27 32028 34.05 11122
Doubtful Assets
Upto 1 year Stage 3 189 82 88.70 32028 26.28 6242
110 3 years Stage 3 - - = - =
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - = = -
Subtotal-Doubtful 189.82 88.70 320.28 26.28 62.42
Loss Assets Stage 3 - - - - -
Loan Commitments Stage | - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - -
Subtotal of Loan commitments - - N - -
Stage 1 91,424.49 185.56 91,238.93 281.96 (96.40)
Grand Total Stage 2 9,298.49 126.29 9,172.19 27.93 98.36
Stage 3 574.25 253.97 640.57 80.33 173.64
52 Detail of lution plan imph i under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related Stress as per RBI Circular dated 6 August 2020 (Resolution Framework — 1.0) and May 5, 2021
{Resolution Framework — 2.0) as at 31 March 2024 are given below.
A) (B) ©) (D) (E)
Exposure to
accounts
classified as Exposure to accounts
Standard OF (A), apgrezate Of (A) amount classified as Standard
Type of Borrower 'tonsrquenl _w debt that slipped QI'[A) lﬂlﬂlll'!l paid by the ) mnsrqum_l to
implementation . . written off during . implementation of
% into NPAs during borrowers during i
of resolution the half vear the half vear the half year resolution plan
plan position as < & position as at the end
at the end of the of this half year
previous half
vear

Personal Loans

Corporate Loans
Of which, MSMEs

Others

Total
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(i)

(i)

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated 22 October 2021 pertaining to Scale Based Regulations (SBR)

Section 1
Exposures
Exposure to real estate sector

Details of all Exposure to real estate sector have been disclosed in point A of Note 45.7 A

Exposure to capital market

Details of all Expasure to real estate sector have been disclosed in point B of Note 45 7 B

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

T‘ai:::;::::n Percentage of r?::;ﬁ;:‘::" Percentage of Gross
Sectars balance sheet  Gross NPAs  OTOnNPASIO L heetand  Gross NPAs NPAS fo 191l
total exposure in exposure in that
and off-balance TP off-balance sheet aitor
sheel exposure) exposure)
1. Agriculture and allied activities - - - - - -
2, Industry - - - - - =
3. Services - - - - - -
4. Personal Loan - - - - - =
1. Housing Loan 131,929.87 591.17 0.45% 71.16002 320.66 0.45%
it. Non Housing Loan 45356 16 516.95 1.14% 38.631.84 25359 0 66%
iii. Others - - - - - =
Total Personal Loan 177,286.03 1,108,12 0.63% 109,791.86 574.25 0.52%
Intra Group exposures
The Company has no exposure to group companies during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
Unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company is having NIL Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
Related party disclosures
Details of all transactions with related parties have been disclosed in Note 41
Disclosure of Complaints
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31. 2023
| Number of complaints pending at the beginning of'the year - - NIL Nil
2 Number of complaints received during the vear 24 17
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 24 17
3.1 Of which. number of complaints rejected by the NBFC Nil
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 2 - Nil Nil
Maintainable complaims received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman - -
3 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of NA NA
Ombudsman
5.1 OF 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of NA NA
Ombudsman
5.2 OF 5. number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/ NA NA
advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office NA NA
of Ombudsman against the NBFC
Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to current year) % increase/
Number of decrease in the
complaints Number of number of Number of Of 5, number of
ding at the plai complai complai complai
beginning of the|received during |received over the |pending at the pending beyond
year the year previous year end of the year 30 days
Ground-1 Levy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foreclosure chd . 1 _50% = E
Ground-2Loans & Advance - 13 225% = -
Others = 10 0% = =
Grand Total 24
Grounds of complaints, (i.c. complaints relating to previous year) % increase/
Number of decrease in the
complaints Number of number of Number of Of 5, number of
pending at the plai complai complai complai
beginning of the|received during |received over the |pending at the pending beyond
year the year previous year end of the year |30 days
Ground-1 Levy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foreclosure chy - 2 - - -
Ground-2Loans & Advance 4 £ R -
Others 11 s = =
Grand Total 17




AVIOM India Housing Finance Private Limited
Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts in INR lakhs, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Section 11
L1 Corporate gove

1.2 The Company has not defaulted in complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 including with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards

2 Breach of covenant

There are no instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

3 Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

For the Year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company has not received any final letter/repont from the Regulator (i e National Housing Bank/Reserve Bank of India) for divergence in
additional provision requirement and the additional Gross NPAs identified by National Housing Bank, which needed to be reported hereunder

As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number. 00023 3N/NS00089

Membership No.: 512535

Place: New Delhi
Date : May 21,2024

/

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AVIOM India(l ing Finance Privat} Limited

Managing Director and CEO
DIN No.: 01390771

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 21, 2024

Amit

Chief Vigilance and Collection
Place: New Delhi

Date - May 21,2024

DIN No : 9082591
Place: Bellevue, WA, LS
Date: May 21, 2024

A
\ (0, oo

Divyani C)

Company Secrétary
Membership No: ACS- §
Place New Delhi

Date  May 21.2024
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DETAILS OF CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD DURING THE CURRENT AND PREVIOUS FINANCIAL

YEAR:
Financial Year 2023-24
§.No | Name of Capacity (i.e, Executive/ Non- | Nature of change Effective date
| Director Executive/Chairman/ Promoter | (resignation, appointment)
| nominee¢/Independent) |
1. Mr. Stephen Non-Executive Nominee Director Appointment ‘ May 29, 2023
Dongwon Lee
2, Mr. Sanjay Ganshi Non-Executive Nominee Director Resignation December 19, 2023
3. Ms. Aashna Cacu Non-Executive Nominee Director Appointment January 09, 2024
Desai
4 Ms. Divya Abhishek | Independent Director Appointment January 12, 2024
5 Mr. Jagannath Non-Executive Nominee Director Resignation March 21, 2024
.| Samavedam
Financial Year 2022-23
S.No | Name of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non- | Nature of change Effective date
Director Executive/Chairman/ Promoter | (resignation,
nominee¢/Independent) appointment)
1. Mr Arvind Kumar | Non-Executive Nominee Director Resignation December 21, 2022
Agarwal 1

DETAILS OF ANY RELATIONSHIP AMONGST THE DIRECTORS INTER-SE:

The directors are duly appointed either through assessment by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or on basis of the
Nomination received from the Investors appointing their Nominee Director of the Board of the Company and further,
recommended to the Board of Directors to approve their appointment, subject to the approval of the shareholders in general

meeting.

Except as shown in the table below, the directors do not have any relationship with each other.

Name of Directors

Relationship amongst the directors inter-se

Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Ilmi & Mr. Kunal Sikka

Sister & Brother




1.2 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various committees to facilitate focused attention on important issues.

Following are the Details of Committees including their composition, number of meetings held during the year under review,
attendance and terms of reference.

#

NAME OF
THE
COMMITTEE

DATE OF
CONSTITUTION

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE

Audit
Committee

February 21, 2022

5]

10,

13,

1%

14.

Periodical discussion with the auditors about internal control systems, scope of |

audit, which include observations of the auditors.
Ensure the compliance of internal control system.
Power to recommend on any matter relating to financial management including,

the Auditors” Report and such recommendation shall be binding on the |

Company, failing which, the Board shall accord the reasons thercof and
communicate the same to the sharcholders.

Make request to the Statutory Auditors, the internal auditors and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company to attend and the aforesaid shall participate
at Meetings of the Audit Committee, without right to vote.

Review with Management the half-yearly/annual financial statement before
submission to the Board, focusing primarily on;

A, Any changes in accounting policies and practices,

B.  Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by the
management,

Qualifications in draft audit report, 1

Significant adjustment arising out of audit,

The going concern assumption.

Compliance with accounting standards and legal requirement relating to
financial statements.

mo0n

Any related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material |

nature, with promoters or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc.
that may have potential conflict with the interests of Company at large.
Matters to be included in Director's Responsibility Statement as per
Companies Acl.

Power to investigate within the terms of reference and shall have full access
to the information contained in the records of the Company and external
professional advice, if necessary.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
them,

Reviewing with the Management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems and adequacy of internal
audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings & follow up
thereon and findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors
into matters where there is suspected fraud/ irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the |

depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors.

To review Management letters issued by the Statutory Auditors and internal
audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

February 21, 2022

Ll

Carrying out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

Recommendation to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, key managerial personnel; reviewing AVIOM's  overall
compensation structure.

Reviewing related polices with a view to attract, molivate and retain
employees and review compensation levels vis-a-vis other Housing Finance
Companies and the industry in general, ensuring the following while
formulating the policy on the aforesaid matters:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate Directors and key managerial personnel of the
quality required to run the company successfully.

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meels
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(c) Remuneration to Directors and key managerial personnel involves a

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term




performance objectives appropriate to the working of AVIOM and its
goals formulating and determining the AVIOM's policies on
remuneration packages payable to the Directors and key managerial
personnel including performance/ achievement bonus, perquisites,
retirals, sitting fees, etc; considering grant of Stock Options to
employees including; functioning as the Compensation Committee as
prescribed under the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and is authorized
to allot shares pursuant to exercise of Stock Options by employees; and |
to perform any other function or duty as stipulated by the Companies
Act, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Stock Exchanges and any other regulatory authority or under any
applicable laws as may be prescribed from time to time.

Asset January 24, 2018 1. The Asset Liability Management Committee is constituted to manage the

Liabilities integrated risks with regard to asset & liability of the Company.

Management 2. The Committee inter alia, shall monitor the asset liability gap and strategize

Committee action to mitigate the risk associated. The Committee shall mainly address
liquidity and interest rate risk. The Asset Liability Management Committee
shall be vested with necessary powers, which are required to achieve its
objectives. : |

LI

Risk January 24, 2018 3. Review and analyze risk exposure related to specific issues and provides

Management oversight of risk across organization.

Committee 4. Review reports of significant issues prepared by internal risk oversight
functional groups, including risk exposure related to specific issues,
concentrations and limits excesses.

5. Nurture a healthy and independent risk management function in the

I company.
i 6. Inculcate risk culture within the organization.

7. Approve the Enterprise wide Risk Management (ERM) framework,

Credit February 05, 2018 [ 1.  The Credit Committee is constituted to comply with extant sanction and

Committee post- sanction processes/ procedures. The Committee shall approve
sanction of all the loans of 5 lacs and above.

2. The Committee inter alia, shall monitor the improvement in quality of credit
portfolio, review of sanction process and compliance status of large loans. |

Loan Review | January 24, 2018 1. The Loan Review Mechanism Committee is constituted to comply with extant

Mechanism sanction and post- sanction processes/ procedures.

Committee 2. The Committee inter alia, shall monitor the improvement in quality of credit
portfolio, review of sanction process and compliance status of large loans,

|

Fair  Practice | February 05, 2018 | To ensure fair and responsible practice is being followed

Code

Committee

I'T  Strategy | September 30, | 1. Reviewing and amending the IT strategies in line with the corporate

| Committee 2019 strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements and any other
matter related to I'T Governance;

2. The Committee shall work in partnership with other Board Committees and ‘
Senior Management to provide input to them. |

3. Approving [T strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the
management has put an effective strategic planning process in place;

4. Ascertaining that Management has implemented processes and practices that
ensure that the I'T delivers value to the business;

5. Ensuring that IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and
that budgets are acceptable;

6. Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the I resources
needed to achieve strategic goals and provide high level direction for
sourcing and use of I'T resources;

7. Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining HFC's growth and
becoming aware about exposure towards I risks and controls.

IT  Executive | September 30, | 1.  Consider IT policies and recommend them for approval.

Committee 2019 2. Consider proposals for new projects for recommendation and prioritise
them.

3. Monitor performance of IT projects and suggest / consider changes.

4. Focus on operations, implementations and value delivery by IT.




10 | Working September 21, | 1. The Committee shall borrow funds in the form of terms loan, working capital
Committee 2020 loan etc for and on behalf of the Company
2. The Committee shall borrow funds within the limits approved by the Board
of Directors from time to time.
3. The Committee shall borrow fund with Interest rate ranging from 9%-14% p.
a,
4. The funds shall be borrowed for a tenure ranging from 12 months to 9%
months.
5. To open bank account for and on behalf of the Company and to modify or
amend the authorised signatory to the banking operations.
6. To delegate direct assignment, co-lending, securitization.
11 | Internal March 07, 2018
Complaint 1. Effective redressal of grievances of any complaint related to Sexual
Committee Harassment of the Company.
2. The Committee shall act in accordance with the terms preseribed in the
Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy. A

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION AS ON MARCH 31, 2024:

Name of Members/ Member of Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Number of
S.No | Directors Committee Non Executive/ Meetings of the
since Chairman/ Promoter Committee No. of shares held
nominee/ Independent) Held Attended | the HFC
AUDIT COMMITTEE *
1 Ms Sannovanda February 21, Independent Director 4 4 0
Machaiah Swathi 2022 Fepence £ B
2 o A
= Ms Kaajal Aijaz [lmi ;Egu ooy 21, Executive Director ¢ 4 1AL81.000
3 Mr Stephen Lee May 29, 2023 Nominee Director 4 3 9
e e - 5 S
! Ms. Divya Abhishek ;;;;u"y 12 Independent Director % 0 ¢
! NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE *
i1 Ms Sannovanda | February 21, . 2 [ 2 0
Niacnit Suoathi 2022 Independent Director
2 Mr Stephen Lee May 29, 2023 Nominee Director 2 1 0
3 ; 2
} Ms. Divya Abhishek '281,’;““3’ 12| Independent Director g 8
ASSET LIABILITY MANGEMENT COMMITTEE 7
b | M Kaajal Ajjaz iimi | AV 2 Managing Director & O | 2 LRLALOR
2 Ms Sannovanda February 21, i 4 4 0
Machaiah Swathi 2022 Independent Director
3 Mr Stephen Lee May 29, 2023 Nominee Director 4 3 0
. Mr Satish Bansal %‘;;ﬁh % Chief Risk Officer 4 4 g
2 Ms. Divya Abhishek E(L;S;uary L Independent Director 4 g 0
| RISK MANAGEMNET COMMITTEE #
anuary 2 . . . 1,01,81,00
1 Ms. Kaajal Asjaz [Imi LS_I:MY 4, Managing Director & CEO % # 10181000
N Ms Sannovanda February 21, = 4 4 0 o
Machaiah Swathi 2022 Trdependent Disssit
3 | MrStephen Lee May 29, 2023 Nominee Director 4 3 0
4 & ; i ; 0
: Mr Satish Bansal i Chief Risk Officer ' ! =
L 2019
5 November 09, Chief Collection, -+ 1 0
Mr Amit Srivastava 2023 Operations and Vigilance
— o Officer - -
6 . . November 09, | Chief Technology Officer | 4 1 0
Mr Gaurav Sahai 2023 (CTO)
= - )
d Ms. Divya Abhishek ;gizazuary 1% Independent Director 4 0 0

CREDIT COMMITTEE *




A

L Ms. Kaajal Aijaz lImi !;g::tguary 0 Managing Director & CEO ? 9 Lonsl,000
2 Mr Satish Bansal Wlarek 27, Chief Risk Officer 0 b Y
2019
LOAN REVIEW MECHANISM COMMITTEE
L Ms. Kaajal Aijaz [lmi {;]:;gary Ll Managing, Director & CEO 0 0 113,000
=
2| MrSatish Bansal el Chief Risk Officer v . .
3 August 11, Chief Collection, 0 0 0
Mr. Amit Srivastava 2021 Operations &Vigilance
Officer
FAIR PRACTICE CODE COMMITTEE s
! Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Ilmi ;g?;uary 05, Managing Director & CEO . 0 1,01,81,000
2
2| Mr Satish Bansal Thehid Chief Risk Officer 4 g 9
3 o August 11, Chief Collection, 0 0 0 ]
Mr. Amit Srivastava 2021 Operations &Vigilance
| Officer Bl
* Mr. Shashi Chandra ‘l;ﬁlb;llﬂfy % Senior Manager-HR 0 g U
1T STRATEGY COMMITTEE o -
1 Ms. Sannovanda February 21, Independent Direct 3 3 0
| Machaiah Swathi 2022 e - i
Ms. Kaajal Aijaz Hmi i’:;f;”mber 30 | Managing Director & CEO | > 3 LOHAL0G
3 - 7 2 s 2
' Mr. Kunal Sikka ng,;llmry “ Non-Executive Director : ! 20.00.000
i 2
sote 3 ;
! Mr. Gaurav Sahai September 21, Chief Technology Officer N 3 0 I
2022 —
? Ms. Divya Abhishek ;;;;uary % Independent Director 3 L ¥
IT STEERING/ EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
1 Ms Kaajal Aijaz [lmi gcl.';?‘;omber 30, Managing Director & CEO 3 3 1,01,81,000
2 Mr. Mool Raj Rana May 29,2023 | Senior Manager- [T 3 3 0 ]
3 i sptembe 3 3
Mr Canua Sabal Sepiember 2L | Chief Technology Officer 2
WORKING COMMITTEE "
1 Ms Kaajal Aijaz Ilmi ixggécmbﬂr 21, Miiiagitig Difector:& CEO 21 21 1,01,81,000 |
2 Ms Divyam Chand September 21, | Chief Compliance Officer | 21 21 0 i
- 12020 | & Company Secretary - o **jl
1' & . i ' > ) i} ) 2 ¥ . Tl 2
; Mr. Satish Bansal September 21, Chiuf Risk Officer 21 1 0
_ e - B - .
INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE
1 Ms Kaajal Aijaz llnmi March 07, Managing Director & CEO | 0 0 1,01,81,000
2018 Chairperson
2 Mr Shashi Chandra July 23, 2019 Senior Manager-HR 0 0 0
2 ie iance Office:
3 Ms Divyari: Chand July 23, 2019 Chief Compliance Officer | 0 0 0
& Company Secretary

5 Mr. Jagannath Samavedanm (Nominee Director) resigned from the board of the Company w.e.f. March 21, 2024. Consequently, he was no longer
the member of the Audit committee as on March 31, 2024
* Mr. Jagannath Samavedam (Nominee Director) resigned from the board of the Companyw.e.f. March 21, 2024, Consequently, he was no longer
the member of the Nomination & Remuneration committee as on March 31, 2024,
’ Mr. Jagannath Samavedam, Nominee Director & Mr. Amit Arora, Chicf Financial Officer resigned from the Company w.e.f March 21, 2024
& March 16, 2024 respectively, Consequent to which, they were no longer members of the Asset Liability Management Connmnittee as on March

31, 2024.

§ Mr. Jagannath Samavedam, Nominee Director & Mr. Amit Arora, Chief Financial Officer resigned from the Contpary w.e.f. March 21, 2024
& March 16, 2024 respectively, Consequent to which, they were no longer members of the Risk Management Commuittee as on March 31, 2024
“Mr Amit Arora, Chief Financial Officer resigned from the Company w.e.f- March 16, 2024. Consequent to which, he was no longer the member
of the Credif Committee as on March 31, 2024.
10 Mr. Amit Arora, Chief Financial Officer resigned from the Company w.e.f. March 16, 2024. Consequent to which, he was no longer the member
of the Loan Revicw Mechanism Committee as on March 31, 2024.
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"Mr. Amit Arora, Chief Financial Officer resigned from the Company w.e.f. March 16, 2024. Consequent to which, he was no longer the member
of the Working Committee as on March 31, 2024,

2 Amit Arora, Chief Financial Officer resigned from the Company w.e.f. March 16, 2024. Consequent to which, he was no longer the member of
the Internal Compliant Committee as on March 31, 2024.

i
1.3 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS ‘

# | Type of | Date and Place Special resolutions passed
Meeting
(Annual/

Extra-
Ordinary)

1. | Extra-Ordinary | Date: May 29, 2023 To Approve and Adopt The Amended Articles Of
General Association Of The Company
Meeting (EGM) | Place: LGF-1, ARIA TOWER, DELHI

AEROCITY, HOSPITALITY DISIRICT,
NEW  DELHI- 110037 VIA VIDEO
CONFERENCING (REGISTERED

. OFFICE)

2. | Extra-Ordinary | Date: June 26, 2023 To Approve Issuance Of Rated, Unlisted, Secured,
General Senior, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable, Non-
Meeting (FGM) | Place: LGF-1, ARIA TOWER, DELHI | Convertible Debentures Denominated In Indian

AEROCITY, HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, | Rupees ("INR") To AAV Sarl (Luxembourg) And
NEW DELHI- 110037 VIA VIDEO | Masala Investments Sarl (Luxembourg)And To
CONFERENCING (REGISTERED | Further Approve The Draft Pas-4/ Private Placement
OFFICE) Offer Cum Application Letter ("PPOA") B

3. | Annual Date: August 10, 2023 No Special Resolution passed

General
| Meeting, Place: LGF-1, ARIA TOWER, DELHI
AEROCITY, HOSPITALITY DISTRICT,
NEW  DELHI- 110037 VIA VIDEO
CONFERENCING (REGISTERED
OFFICE) )

4 | Extra-Ordinary | Date: October 27, 2023 Approval For lIssuance of Series 1D CCPS And
General Warrants on A Preferential Allotment Basis
Meeting (EGM) | Place: WORLDMARK 3, UNIT 306A, 3RD

FLOOR, ASSET AREA NO. 7,
HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, DELHI

| AEROCITY, NEAR INDIRA GANDHI
INTERNATIONAL  AIRPORT,  NEW
DELHI-110037 VIA VIDEO
CONFERENCING (REGISTERED
OFFICE)

5. | Extra-Ordinary | Date: November 09, 2023 1. To approve and adopt the amended article of
General association of the company
Meeting (EGM) | Place: WORLDMARK 3, UNIT 306A, 3RD | 2. Approval for issuance of certain secured, us dollar

FLOOR, ASSET AREA NO. 7, denominated bonds to Japan Asean Women
HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, DELHI Empowerment Fund SA, SICAV-SIF collectively
ALROCITY, NEAR INDIRA GANDHI aggregating up to USD 5 million only
INTERNATIONAL  AIRPORT, NEW | 4 Approval for issuance of certain secured, listed, US
DELL lﬂltlll:}[]?_.? At . ‘_\"’I‘DEO dollar denominated bonds to Blueorchard impact
CON]‘I“‘RL“NCING (BECISTERED credit s.a. SICAV-RAIF collectively aggregating up to
OFFICE) USD 1.7 million only

6. | Extra-Ordinary | Date: January 09, 2024 To approve issuance of 6,000 (six thousand) rated,
General listed, unsubordinated, seccured, redeemable,
Meeting (EGM) | Place: WORLDMARK 3, UNIT 306A, 3RD | transferable, taxable, non-convertible debentures

FLOOR, ASSET AREA NO. 7, | denominated in Indian rupees having a face value of
HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, DELHI | INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees one lakh) cach and an
AEROCITY, NEAR INDIRA GANDHI | aggregate face value of INR 60,00,00,000 (Indian
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT, NEW | Rupees Sixty Crore) on a Private Placement Basis
DELHI-110037 VIA VIDEO

CONFERENCING (REGISTERED

OFFICE)




7. | Extra-Ordinary | Date: March 19, 2024 Approval For Issuance of certain secured, Listed, US|

: General Dollar  Denominated Bonds to  Blueorchard

‘ Meeting (EGM) | Place: WORLDMARK 3, UNIT 306A, 3RD | Microfinance Fund Collectively Aggregating Up to
FLOOR, ASSET  AREA NO. 7. | USD10 Million Only

HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, DELHI

AEROCITY, NEAR INDIRA GANDHI ‘ F
INTERNATIONAL  AIRPORT,  NEW )
DELHI-110037 VIA VIDEO

CONFERENCING (REGISTERED

OFFICE)

1.4 DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

I'he Company has not defaulted in complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 including with respect to compliance
with accounting and secretarial standards.

1.5 DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

During the Financial Year 2023-24, BSE had levied penalty on the Company of INR 5,000/~ under Regulation 50 (1) for delayed
intimation of Board Meeting as the board meeting was convened on shorter notice; INR 53,000/~ under Regulation 53(2) for delay
in submission of Annual Report and INR 5,000/~ under Regulation 50 (2) for delay in intimation of Annual General Meeting
(" AGM") as the AGM was convened on shorter notice.

The Company had paid the entire amount of penalty to the Stock Exchange. The same had been discussed and noted in the Board
Meeting of the Company held on February 12, 2024.

Further, The Company had during FY 2022-23 received email dated September 28, 2022 from BSE w.rt. fines levied under
Regulation 57 (1) of SEBI (LODR). In this regard, the company submitted its reply to BSE vide its letter dated September 28, 2022
requesting to waive off the fines levied citing reasons and justification. Accordingly, BSE vide its email dated September 21, 2023
communicated to the Company that waiver of fines has been approved by the “Request Review Committee for Waiver of Fines
Levied under Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)”.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Details of the remuneration/ fees paid to Directors:

# Names of Directors Remuneration
Salary And other | Sitting Commission
compensation Fee
| 1. Ms. Kaajal Atjaz lmu Salary: INR 2,85,50,000-/ - - -
Other Compensation: INR
- 1,60,00,000/ -
2 Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi | - 7,74,000
3 | Ms. Divya Abhishek - o 1,08,000 REE - N _J

SIS, W T

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the Financial Year under review, there are no material significant related party transactions as per the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 made by the Company with Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3) (h) of the Act
read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 required to be given in the prescribed form AOC-2is nat applicable.

In line with the requirements of the Act and the directions issued by the RBI, the Company has formulated a policy on Related
Party Transactions, which describes the transactions requiring requisite approvals, reporting and disclosures of transactions
between the Company and its related parties. The said policy has also been uploaded on the Company’s website www.aviom.in
and it also forms part of this Board’s Report.

Further it is confirmed that except as provided under notes to accounts, none of the directors had any pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company during the year under review.




